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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
I

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PVBLIC HEAL TH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-4501 l-SOO-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 7, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc., Vendor #155358-
B001, 45 High Street Nashua, New Hampshire, 03060, for the provision of early intervention services
and behavioral counseling to individuals at risk for acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus, by
increasing the price limitation by $99,478 from $347,184 to $446,662 and by extending the completion
date from June 30. 20T9 to October 31, 2019, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval.
51% Federal Funds, 49% Other Funds. '

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on February 21,
2018 (Item #7).

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020 and SFY 2021, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust
amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office.

05-95-90-902510-75360000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. STD/HIV
PREVENTION

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024000 $30,000 $0.00 $30,000

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024000 $30,000 $0.00 $30,000

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024000 $0.00 $8,790 $8,790

Subtotal $60,000 $8,790 $68,790
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05-95-90-902510-22290000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH,
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024611 $143,592 $0.00 $143,592

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024611 $143,592 $0.00 $143,592

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90024611 $0.00 $49,070 $49,070

•  ■ ■■ ■ i' ■ -i" ,  ' t

Subtotal $287,184 $49,070 $336,254

05-95-90-902510-51700000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, DISEASE CONTROL

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90021006 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2019 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90021006 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
90021006 $0.00 $41,618 $41,618

r  • ' ■ ■ V ■ ■ .-V' - ■ Subtotal $0.00 $41,618 $41,618

,  t '
Total $347,184 $99,478 $446,662

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue providing early intervention services and behavioral
counseling to individuals who have been identified to meet the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention's guidelines for routine Human Immunodeficiency Virus testing.

Individuals with Human Immunodeficiency Virus, who receive medical services prior to their
condition advancing to Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome, improve their health outcomes, which
decreases the likelihood of transmitting the virus to others. Additionally, the United States Preventative
Services Taskforce recognizes that behavioral counseling interventions in a clinical setting are an
important means of addressing prevalent health-related behaviors, such as risky sexual behavior.

The approximate numbers of individuals served during the original contract period is 234. The
Department anticipates another 500 individuals will receive services during this contract renewal period.
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The original agreement, included language in Exhibit 0-1, that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to two (2) years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for four (4) months at this time.

The Contractor continues to provide early intervention services, including routine Human
Immunodeficiency Virus testing, to make individuals aware of their Human Immunodeficiency Virus
status. Individuals who test positive for Human Immunodeficiency Virus will receive health education and
linkage to Human Immunodeficiency Virus care services. Linkage to care is essential to ensure that an
individual is provided the opportunity to be placed on anti-retroviral medication with a goal of viral
suppression, which greatly decreases the likelihood that the individual will transmit the virus to others.
The Contractor will provide behavioral counseling to clients who test negative for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus but are at high risk of acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus. The goal of
the behavioral counseling will be to identify behavior changes needed to reduce the individual's risk for
acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

1. Referral and Linkaoe to Care - Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests linked to HIV
care. Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests that attend their first appointment:

95% of all newly identified HIV cases will have a documented referral to HIV medical care
at the time of positive test result.

90% of all newly identified HIV cases will have documented attendance at their first HIV
medical care appointment.within 30 days of date of referral.

2. HIV Testing - Number of tests performed. The vendor(s) will perform a minimum number of {to
be determined within 150 days of award) HIV tests annually following the testing
recommendations outlined in the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Routine HIV Testing
Guidelines, 2006.

3. Behavioral Counseling. The vendor(s) will ensure that the Behavioral Counseling intervention will
serve individuals at high risk of acquiring HIV.

75% of the Behavioral Counseling caseload shall consist of HIV negative individuals who
identify with one of the following risk factors:

o Male who at the time of referral reports having unprotected sex with men; and

o Person who injects drugs whom at the time of referral reports sharing drug injection
equipment.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, early intervention services
may not continue to be available to New Hampshire residents who are unaware of their Human
Immunodeficiency Virus status. This could result in increased transmission of Human Irrimunodeficiency
Virus in the community. Additionally, behavioral counseling may not be provided to clients, which would
increase their risk and the risk of transmission to others in acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus.

Area served: Nashua Area.

Source of Funds: 51% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
Integrated Prevention and Surveillance Grant, CFDA# 93.940, FAIN U62PS924538, and 49% Other
Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates.
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jettpfey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for HIV Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Early intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for HIV

This 1** Amendment to the Early Intervention Services for Human immunodeficiency Virus contract
(hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Harbor
Homes. Inc., (hereinafter referred to as "the ContractoO. a nonprofit corporation with a place of business
at 45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on February 21,2018, (Item #7), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 3 the Stale may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual cover^ants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Dale, to read:

October 31.2019.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$446,662.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for Stale Agency, to read:

Nathan White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Biock 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A. Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1 -
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1.1 and replace with:

1.1 Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual costs incurred in accordance with
the approved budget line items in Exhibit 8-1 Budget through Exhibit B-4, Budget Sheet.

7. Add Exhibit B-3. Budget Sheet, Amendment#!

8. Add Exhibit 8-4, Budget Sheet. Amendment #1

Harbor Homes Inc Amendmem #1
RFP-2017-DPHS-ie-EARLY-02 Page 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for HIV Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Departm^t of Health and Human Services

Date

Oh->
Name:

™e: tUfttC-VCK"! CiPHS

Harbor Homes Inc.

ite
zi

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of Xjg^ County of on ^l'}ol'2c?\^ before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in
the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

'•To.

My Corhmission Expires:
5

l-.v

WILUAM Ci MAHTtN
Jufitioe of tho Peace - New Hampshire

My Commission Expires November 4,2020

Harbor Homes Inc.
RFP-2017.DPHS-18-EARLY-02

Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for HIV Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance,
and execution. —

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date /hName.

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes Inc.
RFP-2017-DPHS-18-EARLY.02

Amendment #1

Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicabie to Ail Services

1.1. The Contractor will submits detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to
ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders rfiay have an
impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to
modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Early Intervention Services (EIS) for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) to all ElS-eligible individuals receiving
primary care services in order to assist individuals who are unaware of their
HIV status to learn of their status and receive either referral to prevention
services or referrals to linkages to HIV care services.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Behavioral Counseling services to all EIS
eligible individuals who test negative through EIS for HIV but are identified
to be at high risk of acquiring HIV.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop policies and procedures for delivering Early
Intervention Services (EIS) and Behavioral Counseling Interventions in
accordance with EIS Standards of Care.

1.6. The Contractor shall hire one (1) PTE Master's level program coordinator
and one (1) .250 PTE Behavioral Health counselor, both of which shall be
dedicated in their capacity to perform duties specified in Section 2 Scope of
Work.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall continue implementation of an Early intervention
Service (EIS) Program that follows the Department's New Hampshire Ryan
White Program Standards of Care for EIS and the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention Routine HIV Testing Guidelines (2006).

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure the EIS Program services include but are not

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFP-2017-BIDC-15-EARLY
Page 1 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services-- -
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

limited to;

2.2.1. Routine HIV Testing and Targeted Counseling;

2.2.2. Referral Services;

2.2.3. Linkage to Care; and

2.2.4. Outreach Services and Health Education/Risk reduction related

to HIV diagnosis as well as literacy training to HIV positive clients
to navigate the HIV system of care.

2.3. The Contractor shall deliver Behavioral Counseling interventions as
outlined by the United States Preventative Services Taskforce (USPSTF),
as approved by DPHS.

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure Behavioral Counseling, as developed in
collaboration with the Department, Is provided to individuals who are
Identified as being at high risk for acquiring HIV.

2.5. The Contractor shall reach the target population through external referrals,
outreach activities; and strong collaborative relationships with area
agencies. The Contractor shall:

2.5.1. Ensure clinical staff is supplied with a fact sheet that provides
information and answers to questions that may be received from
patients about the HIV testing program.

2.5.2. Ensure clinical staff is supplied with scripts to address testing and
HIV risk with patients and to make effective referrals to HIV
testing and health clinicians.

2.5.3. Distribute printed materials regarding EIS to key agencies and
public areas In the City of Nashua.

2.5.4. Ensure printed materials In Section 2.5.3 above include, but are
not limited to:

"  2'.5.~471. Flyers.

2.5.4.2. Testing cards.

2.5.4.3. Condoms with testing information labels.

2.5.4.4. Informational pamphlets.

2.5.5. Ensure Information regarding EIS is available on-line through the
clinic website and partners' Facebook pages. The Contractor
shall encourage partner agencies to provide similar access to
EIS/HIV information on their websites.

2.5.6. Provide education and In-house training to partner agency.^staff

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor initials

RFP-2017-BIOC-15-EARLY
Page 2 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services — —'—
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for -
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

"  . Exhibit A; Amendment #1

on HIV testing and effective referrals to services.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide patient follow up that including but is not limited
to:

2.6.1. Informing patients on confidentiality and how the testing process
will occur.

2.6.2. Informing patients with confirmed positive test results of linkages
to medical care and support around partner testing.

2.6.3. Providing health education and literacy training.

2.6.4. Notifying the Department's Infectious Disease Prevention,
Investigation and Care Services Section (IDPICSS) by telephone
of all HIV preliminary positive test results no later than 4:00 PM
the following business day after the day of testing.

2.6.5. Assisting the Department's IDPICSS with contacting patients with
a positive HIV diagnose for the purpose of eliciting, identifying
and locating information on sexual and/or needle-sharing
partners.

2.6.6. Providing health education and literacy training.

2.7. The Contractor shall conduct HIV testing activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.7.1. Utilizing all insurance options for the payment of HIV testing
services whenever possible.

2.7.2. Ordering HIV rapid test and specimen collection kits from the
Department for uninsured and underinsured individuals.

2.7.3. Providing HIV testing in primary care settings that are simple,
accessible, and straight forward in order to minimize client
barriers.

2.7.4V Providing HIV testing utilizing fourth (4th) generation'HIVtestirig"
technology

2.7.5. Completing specimen collection for HIV tests.

2.7.6. Submitting specimens to the Department within 72 hours of

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment Contractor Initials
RFP-2017-BIDC-15-EARLY

Page 3 of 9 Date w



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services'^—^ ^
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

^""Exhibit A>Amendmerit#1

specimen collection.

2.7.7. Completing Department-approved training for:

2.7.7.1. The operation of the rapid test technology.

2.7.7.2. Data collection.

2.7.7.3. Counseling and referral services.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure program staff attend meetings and trainings

that include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Implementation of Routine HIV Testing in Health Care Settings:
Issues for Community Health Centers.

2.8.2. Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines.

2.8.3. Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP).

2.8.4. Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP).

2.8.5. Revised Recommendations for HIV Testing of Adults,
Adolescents, and Pregnant Women in Health Care Settings.

2.9. The Contractor shall deliver Hepatitis C (HCV) testing services, as funding is
available per Department approval. Services include but are not limited to:

2.9.1. Ordering HCV rapid test and specimen collection kits from the
Department for uninsured and underinsured individuals.

2.9.2. Providing HCV testing in primary care settings that are simple,
accessible, and straight forward in order to minimize client
barriers.

2.9.3. Providing HCV testing utilizing rapid HCV testing technology.

2.9.4. Completing specimen collection for HCV tests.

2.9.5. Submitting specimens to the Department within 72 hours of
specimen collection. - - - . .

3. Staffing Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall identify one staff person as the primary agency staff
person to serve as the Department's point of contact who is responsible for
responding to any Department staff inquiries and ensuring all required
reporting is complete within the specified timeframe.

3.2. The Contractor shall maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and
complete all functions, requirements, roles, and duties of the contract.

3.3. The Contractor shall train all new staff who interact with EIS clients utilizing
the HIV Navigation Services Program within three (3) months of hire

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services— -
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

~  - Exhibit A, Amendment #1

3.4. The Contractor shall ensure that staff who perform testing services are
trained In using the appropriate test technology as well as trained in
providing any necessary pre and post test counseling that may be required.

3.5. The Contractor shall comply with the Department's security and
confidentiality guidelines related to all protected health information, such as
but not limited to the Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate
Agreement.

3.6. The Contractor shall comply with New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-
P 301.02 Reportable Diseases.

4. Reporting Requirements and Record Keeping

4.1. The Contractor shall collect and submit forms that include client level name-

based data as specified in the reporting forms provided by the Department.
The Contractor shall:

4.1.1. Submit all required documentation related to HIV testing and
counseling on appropriate forms supplied by the Department for
each client supported by these funds.

4.1.2. Collect forms in a secured area for bulk submission to the

Department on the first (1®^) business day of every month.

4.2. The Contractor shall maintain ongoing medical records for each individual
served. Information in each record shall include, but is not limited to:

4.2.1. Documentation of on-site provisions for all EIS services and
Behavioral Counseling.

4.2.2. Reports of the number of HIV tests conducted and positive test
results.

4.2.3. Documentation of HIV testing activities and methods.

4.2.4. Documentation of the number of referrals for health care and

- - - supportive services, as per DPHS Guidelines. - —

4.3. The Contractor shall document the number of referrals and connections to

Behavioral Counseling addressing the risk for HIV acquisition.

4.4. The Contractor shall submit a quarterly report, in a format approved by the
Department that:

4.4.1. Outlines program implementation progress, challenges,
performance measures and spending.

4.4.2. Includes the number of new staff who have been hired and

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment #1 Contractor Initiais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services - - - -
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

trained In HIV Navigation Services (HNS). -

5. Tasks & Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall update the workplan on at least an annual basis, or as
needed, and submit the updated plan to the Department for review and
approval.

5.2. The Contractor shall complete EIS HIV testing forms for all test kits
purchased by the Department.

6. Performance Measures

6.1.1. Performance Measure #1: To ensure that eligible EIS clients who are
tested for HIV receive their results in an appropriate timeframe as
follows:

6.1.1.1. Target: 90% of HIV test results performed on the EIS
Population will be returned to clients within 3 business days of
testing date;

6.1.1.2. Numerator: The number of HIV test results among the clients
that fall within the EIS population returned within 3 business
days of the test date; and

6.1.1.3. Denominator: The number of HIV tests performed on EIS
clients that fall within the HIV target population.

6.1.1.4. Data Source: Contractor shall track data independently and
report in the aggregate, on the quarterly report outlined in 4.2.

6.1.2. Performance Measure #2: To ensure that EIS clients who test positive
for HIV receive their test results in appropriate time frames as follows:

6.1.2.1. Target: 95% of newly identified, confirmed HIV positive test
results will be returned to clients within 3 business days;

-  -6.-1.2.2.—Numerator:- ■ The number of newly identified, confirmed-HIV
positive test results returned to clients within 3 business days of
the test date; and

6.1.2.3. Denominator: The number of newly identified, confirmed HIV
positive test results.

6.1.2.4. Data Source: Contractor shall track data independently and
report in the aggregate, on the quarterly report outlined in 4.2.

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment#! Contractor Initials
RFP-2017-BIDC-15-EARLY

Page 6 of 9 Date

SL



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

6.1.3. Performance Measure #3: To ensure that clients who test positive for
HIV receive timely access to appropriate medical care services as
follows:

6.1.3.1. Target: 95% of newly identified HIV positive cases referred to
medical care will attend their first medical appointment within 30
days of receiving a positive test result;

6.1.3.2. Numerator: The number cases referred to medical care that

attend their first medical appointment within 30 days of
receiving a positive test result; and

6.1.3.3. Denominator: The number of newly identified HIV positive
cases that are referred to medical care services.

6.1.3.4. Data Source: Contractor shall track data independently and
report in the aggregate, on the quarterly report outlined in 4.2.

7. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

7.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and
Loss Statement, and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. Program-level
Profit and Loss Statement shall include all revenue sources and all related

expenditures. The Profit and Loss Statement shall include a budget column
allowing for budget to actual analysis. Statements shall be submitted within
thirty (30) calendar days after each month end. The Contractor will be
evaluated on the following:

7.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

7.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses, that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

7.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments divided by total operating expenditures, less

'  depreciation/amortization and in-kind" plus ""principal"

payments on debt divided by days in the reporting period.
The short-term investments as used above must mature

within three (3) months and should not include common
stock.

7.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have

enough cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures
for a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no
variance allowed.

7.1.2. Current Ratio:

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services-
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for -
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

7.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current

assets available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

7.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

7.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

7.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

7.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

7.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date
debt service.

7.1.3.3. . Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization
Expense plus Interest Expense divided by year to date

"■ debt ser-zice (principal and interest) over the next twelve
(12) months.

7.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

7.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

7.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

7.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's
ability to cover its liabilities.

7.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total
assets.

7.1.4.3. " Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities)
divided by total assets.

7.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

7.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

7.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

7.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard
regarding Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit A, Amendment#! Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A, Amendment #1

7.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
standards for three (3) consecutive months, then

7.2.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with
Department staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not
met the standards.

7.2.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a
comprehensive corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days
of notification that 7.2.1 and/or 7.2.2 have not been met.

7.2.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at
least every thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is
achieved.

7.2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional information to
assure continued access to services as .requested by the
Department. The Contractor shall provide requested
information in a timeframe agreed upon by both parties.

7.3. The Contractor shall inform the Department by phone and by email within
twenty-four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or
likely litigation, investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may
reasonably be considered to have a material financial impact on and/or
materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor to perform under this
Agreement with the Department.

7.4. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement,
and all other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of
accounting and include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures
whether or not generated by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this
Agreement. These reports are due within thirty (30) calendar days after the
end of each month.

Harbor Homes. Inc. Exhibit A. Amendment Contractor Initials

RFP-2017-BIDC-15-EARLY
Page 9 of 9 Date



Exhibit B-3. Amendment ft. Btidgel Sheet

N«w Hampshlf* Department of HeaNh and Human Services

Contractor name HARBOR HOUES. INC.

Budget Request (or Earty Intervention Service* and Behavioral CounaeBng lor HIV

Budget Period; JULY I. »1» through October 31. 201*

Total Program Cost

' Direct Indirect Total

Contractor Share I Match

Direct Indirect Total

Funded by DHHS contract share

Direct' ' Indirect

1, Total Salary/Wages 35.072.00 35,072.00 35.072.00 35,072.00
2. Emplovee Benefits 8,768.00 8.766.00 8.768-00 8.768.00
3. Consultants

4. Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Mainienance

Pirchase/Depreciation

S. Supplies:

Educational 333.00 333.00 333.00 333.00

L^b 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00

Pharmacy

Medical

Office 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00

6. Travel 600.00 600.00 600.00 600.00
7. Occupancy 800.00 800.00 800.00 600.00

8. Current Expenses
Telephorw

Postaoe 166.00 166.00 166.00 166.00

Sutiscriptions
Audit arxi Legal

Insurance

Board Expenses

Software 666.00 666.00 666.00 666.00

10. Maricetinq/Communications 1.666.00 1,666.00 1,666.00 1.666.00
11. Staff Education and Trainlriq 1,000.00 1,000.00 1.000.00 1.000.00
12. Subcontracts/Aoreemeras •1

13. Other (spedfic details mandalory):
Conferences 348.00 348.00 348.00 348.00

Indirect expenses/Admin 7,641.00 7,641,00 7.641.00 7.641.00

TOTAL 57,860.00 57,860.00 57,860.00 57,860.00
Indirect Ax A Percent of Obeet

Harbor Home* Irrc.

RFP-2017-8IOC-15-EAftLY

ExNb«B-3. Amandmetaci, Budget Sheet
Page I ol 1 Date



ExMM B-4, Anwidmeflt *1, Budgat 8h*«l

N«w Hsmpshir* Department of Health and Human Services

Contraeier nem* Harbor Homas Inc.

Bueoal Raquaal for. HCV

Budeat Parted: July 1.20ta-Odebar

Una Item Direct

Total Program Cost

Indirect Total

Contractor Share / Match

Indirect . Total' Direct'

Funded by DHHS contract

Indirect

1. Total SataryfWaqes 1 V880.00 2,070.68 13,950.68 11,880.00 2,070.68 13,950.68
2. Emptovee Benefits 2.970.00 517.67 3,487.67 2,970.00 517.67 3.487.67
3. Consuftants

4. gquipmeni:

Rental

Repair and Malnteftance
PurchasafPepreciation

S. SuppBee:

Educational 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
Lab

Pharmacy
Medical 23.475.00 23.475.00 23.475.00 23.475.00

Office

6. Travel

7. Occut>ancy 604.00 604.00 604.00 604.00
8. Currem Expertses

Telephooe

Postage

Subscfipticns

Audit and Legal

Board Expenses

9. SofiviBre

10. MarfcetlnQ/Communications
11. Staff Educatlcn arx) Trainina

12. Sut)contract3/Aareements
13. Other (specific details mandatorvi:

TOTAL 39.029.00 2,588.36 41.617.36 39.029.00 2,588.36 41.617.36
Indlrwl Am A Pwcwrt of Okocf e.e%

Harbor Horn— Inc.

RFP-20I74IDC- IS-EARLV
ExNM B-4. AmendmarHl. Budeat Shad
Page I ol I

Corteactor InUali



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of Now Hampshire, do hereby certify that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to. transact business in New Hampshire on,Fcbruary 15, 1980. 1 further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

ofTice is concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Certificate Number: 0004516965

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

-this-1.7th.day-of-May-A.D.-2019

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



1. 1 am a

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Name of the elerted Oft;c^r of J^Age'ncJ/cTnnot te7ontract signal"
duly elected Officer of ■A/^rlv.r ^ .

(Agency Name) '' "
2. The follo^dng is a true copy of the ^solution duly adopted at a meetins of the Board of Directors of
the Agency duly held on ^^JSo//?

'  (E9ate)
RESOLVED; That the _ C.P/9- ■

(Title of Contract Signatory)

ex^X"d°c^':^^„rag^^^ ^ State arrd toor modlficatior^ thereto, as he/she may deem
3. Tt« fo^ir,fl resr^^ons have not l«er, amend«l or revoked, and remain In full force and effect as of
the day of 2o/f.

(Date Contraqf^igned)

'• ^fj^eC(ct/irfetory) ^. Cf(^
Of the Agency.

(Title of Contract Signatory)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The forgoing Instrument was acknowledged before me this 30^ day of
By_i

(Signature o Officer)

(Name of Elejrted Offirer of the Agency)

^,.1- ^
(NOT^Y-SE^l!.y.j"'

'  • '■^r,

^.CommiasionExpire#June29,2021

20il,

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

^ I' I ̂ '

W DHHS. Offloe of Buslnett Operations
July 1,2005



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

11/30/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADOmONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain pollclos may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endcrsementis).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Bea/be Insurance Agency, Inc.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

NAME*" Klmbertv Gutekunst
603-882-2766 llw. hoI:

Anrmpss- kautekunst/Beatonberube.com

INSURER/S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Hanover Insurance

INSURED HARHO

Harbor Homes. Inc
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03062

INSURER a: Philadelphia Insurance Companies

INSURER c: Eastem Alliance Insurance Group

INSURER D: Selective Insurance Group

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1724279025 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

MB. TYPE OF mSURANCE iiTHIllvrJIl POUCY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABiLITY

CLAIMS-MAOEEOCCUR

Abut*

GErfL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

POLICY r~| JECT HlOC
OTHER:

S2288207

POLICY EFF
IMMmoiYYYYI

7/1/2018

POLICY EXP
IMMmO/YYYYI

7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO REMTEP
PREMISES IE* occufrerx:*)

MEO EXP (Any on* parton)

PERSONAL 8 ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
IE* acddanO

11,000.000

S 1.000.000

120,000

11.000,000

S 3,000.000

t 3.000.000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

308871 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 S 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON.OWNEO

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par acddani)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fp*f *edd*nt>

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS4AA0E

306873 7/1/2018 7/1/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE >10,000.000

AGGREGATE >10,000.000

DED RETENTION >
OTH
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y,
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER«XECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDEO?

(Martdaioiy in NH)
If y*t, datcrib* und*r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

□
010000111752 11/26/2018 11/26/2019 PER

STATUTE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT >1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE >1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT >1,000,000

Profetsionai UabiUty
Management Liability
Crime

L1VA966006
PHSD125&460
S2288207

7/1/2018
7/1/2018
7/1/2018

7/1/2019
7/1/2019
7/1/2019

Pro/ettlorwl 'Gap*
080
Employee Oltlwwtty

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
$510,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarlia Schedule, may b* attached If more apace It required)
Additional Named Insureds:
Harbor Homes. Inc. - FID# 020351932
Harbor Homes II. Inc.
Harbor Homes III. Inc.
Healthy at Homes. Inc. -FID# 043364080
Milford Regional Counseling Service. Inc. -FID# 222512360
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
Welcoming Light. Inc. -FID# 020481648
See Attached...

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

DHHS. state of NH
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
(D1968-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC #:

ACORCf ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1

AGENCY

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc.
NAMED INSURED

Harbor Homes. Inc
77 Northeastern Boulevard

Nashua NH 03062POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC COOE

EFFECTIVE OATE:

ADDtTIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADOmONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER: _25_ PnBM titi p- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
HH Ownership. Inc.
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall ̂ FID# 222558859
Boulder Point, LLC - Map 213/Lot 5.3, Boulder Point Drive, Plymouth, NH 03264

ACORD 101 (2008/01) O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



77 Northeastern Blvd

Nashua, NH 03062

www.harborhomes.org

Harbor
OMESinc

Phone;

Fax:

603-882-3616

603-881-8436

603-595-7414

A Beacon for the Homeless for Over 30 Years

Mission Statement

To create and provide quality residential and supportive services for persons (and theirfamilies) challenged by mental

illness and homelessness.

A member of the

Partnership for Successful Living
A collaboration of six offilioted not-for-profit orgonizoflons providing souttiern New Hampshire's most vuinercble
community members with access to housing, heoith core, education, employment and supportive services.
www.nhpar1nership.org

Horbor Homes • Healthy at Home • Keystone Hall ♦ Milford Regionol Counseling Services
• Southern NH HIV/AIDS Task Force • Welcoming Light



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon)
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Melanson
ACCOUNTANTS • AUDITORS

Heath

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua, NH 05063

(603)882-1111
metansonheath.com

Additional Offices:

Andover, MA

Greenfield, MA

To the Board of Directors of Manchester, nh

Harbor Homes, Inc.
Ellsworth, ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Harbor
Homes, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, functional ..expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this Includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based-on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Healthy
at Home, Inc., whose statements reflect total assets constituting 1% of consolidated
total assets at June 30, 2018, and total revenues constituting 5% of consolidated
total revenues for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other
auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for Healthy at Home, Inc., is based solely on the
report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures In the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the
consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Harbor Homes, Inc. as of June 30, 2018, and the
changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Harbor Homes, Inc.'s fiscal year 2017 financial state
ments, Including the fiscal year 2017 financial statements of the entities included In
these consolidated financial statements (except for Healthy at Home, Inc. which was
audited by other auditors who expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
audited financial statements), and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on those
audited financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 Is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which
it has been derived

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The Consolidating Statement of Financial Position and the
Consolidating Statement of Activities are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such Information Is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, Including comparing



and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 20, 2018 on our consideration of Harbor Homes, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Harbor Homes. Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Harbor Homes Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 20, 2018



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

June 30,2018

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30,2017)

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Patient receivables, net

Promises to give

Investments

Inventory
Other assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Property and equipment, net
Deferred compensation pian assets.

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Lines of credit

Current portion of capital leases payable
Current portion of mortgages payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

Other liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long>Term Liabilities;
Security deposits
Deferred compensation plan liabilities
Mortgages payable, tax credits
Mortgages payable, net of current portion
Mortgages payablerdeferred—

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Unrestricted Net Assets

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2018 2017

;  480,242 $ 754,353

1,096,661 614,739

2,060,419 2.784,965

1,301,048 1,079,605
- 8,000

192,731 493,543

123,078 67,277

71.155 101,770

5,325,334 5,904,252

30,968,341 30,353,542

16,800 -

30,985,141 - 30,353,542

;  36,310,475 S 36,257,794

;  1,285,423 S 1,094,935
- 18,304

496,608 450,736

865,390 1,289,475

1,742,169 1,464,378

341,071 33,017

12,077 5,582

4,742,738 4,356.427

68,918 67,636

16,800 -

158,237 79,280

15,783,030 16,245,171

• 8,571,209 7,618,496

24,598,194 24,010,583

29,340,932 28,367,010

6,851,238 7,561,606

118,305 329,178

6,969,543 7,890,784

36,310,475 $ 36,257,794

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2017)

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted 2018 2017

Net Assets Net Assets Total Total

Public Support and Revenue:
Public Support:

State and local grants $  11,380,392 $ $  11,380,392 $  7,395,645
Federal grants 7,496,411 80,300 7,576,711 8,074,192

Contributions 73,663 613,018 686,681 1,044,621

Other grants 217,794 451,324 669,118 217,600

Fundraising events, net 20,857 28,097 48,954 33,283

Net assets released from restriction 1,383.612 (1,383,612) - -

Total Public Support 20,572,729 (210,873) 20,361,856 16,765,341

Revenue:

Patient services revenues (other), net 5,686,860 - 5.686,860 5,512,169

Patient services revenues (FQHC), net 3,664,163 - 3,664,163 2,430,16V

Department of Housing and
Urban Development programs 3,429,882 - 3,429,882 3,420,327

Veterans Administration programs 2,213,701 - 2,213,701 2,160,799

Contracted services 1,039,097 - 1,039,097 1,044,751

Rent and service charges, net 867,249 - 867,249 825,519

Outside rent 555,551 - 555,551 432,905

Fees for services 344,456 - 344,456 318,808

Miscellaneous 177,075 - 177,075 27,768

Investment income (loss) 40,632 - 40,632 26,437

Total Revenue. 18,018,666 - 18,018,666 16,199,644

Total Public Support and Revenue 38,591,395 (210,873) 38,380,522 32,964,985

Expenses:

Program 33,423,301 - 33,423,301 27,777,021

Administration 3,754,447 - 3,754,447 3,176,798

Fundraising 667,731 - 667,731 670,846

Total Expenses 37,845,479 - 37,845,479 31.624.665

Change In net assets before depreciation 745,916 (210,873) 535,043 1,340,320

Depreciation (1.456.284)
- - —

" 7T.456T284) fi;354;446)

Change In net assets (710,368) (210,873) (921,241) (14,126)

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 7,561,606 329,178 7,890,784 7,904,910

Net Assets, End of Year $  6,851,238 $  118,305 $  6,969,543 $  7,890,784

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2017)

2018 2017

Pr9qr?ni Administration Fiindraisino Total Total

Expenses:

Salaries and wages S  14,520.100 $  2,272,110 $  435,102 $  17,227,312 $ 14,123,846

Client rental assistance 6.475.207 - - 6,475,207 5,793,879

Employee benefits 1.822,234 291,863 43,725 2,157,822 1,516,722

Contracted services 1,930,543 67,920 5,586 2,004,049 2,134,126

Occupancy 1,753,278 176,775 4,022 1,934,075 1,733,130

Payroll taxes 1,157,347 171,856 34,646 1,363,849 1,059,527

Client insurance assistance 923,931 - - 923,931 459,578

Operational supplies 799,811 6,456 219 806,486 354,235

Grants and donations 518,300 39,641 71.553 629,494 752,534

Interest expense 804,073 126,025 2,768 932,866 739,534

OfTfce expenses 472,217 73,943 38,674 584,834 349,044

Other client assistance - 460,267 50 - 460,317 123,926

Retirement contributions 324,433 122,669 6,605 453,707 323,890

information technology 253,023 47,632 3,505 304,160 602,080

Client food and nutrition services 243,474 519 - 243,993 217,641

Travel 218,521 16,835 1,194 236,550 221,188

insurance 152,556 10,724 228 163,508 251,962

Professional fees 119,833 51,595 6,426 177,854 163,910

Miscellaneous 137,963 66,459 1,393 205,815 127,572

Legal fees 29,722 81,685 226 111,633 122,421

Accounting fees 1,040 105,769 - 106,809 115,000

Conferences, conventions, and meetings 86,759 12,227 1,181 100,167 151,668

Advertising and promotion 83,847 4,576 9,979 98,402 24,842

Client counseling and support services 60,218 367 - 60,585 106,044

Staff expenses 33,117 4,518 699 38,334 10,830

Membership dues 20,772 2,233 . 23,005 30,190

Client medical assistance 20,715 - - 20,715 15,346

Total Expenses 33,423,301 3,754,447 667,731 37,845,479 31,624,665

Depreciation 1,337,587 114,639 4,058 1,456,284 1,354.446

Total Functional Expenses --$—34,760,888 $  3,869,086 $  671,789 S  39,301,763 $ 32,979,111

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,2017)

2018 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $  (921,241) $  (14.126)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,456,284 1,354,446

(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts receivable 724,546 (1,304,307)
Patient receivables (221,443) (242,996)

Promises to give 8,000 (8,000)
Inventory (55,801) (67,277)

Other assets 30,615 76,667

Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable (424,085) 792,902

Accrued expenses 277.791 381,422

Deferred revenue 308,054 5,739

. Other liabilities. 6.495 .  (257.701)

Net Cash Provided, by Operating Activities 1,189,215 716,769

Cash Flows From Investing'Activities:
Security deposits 1,282 25,993

Purchase of fixed assets (2,071,083) (640,938)

Sale of investments 300,812 (340.897)

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1,768,989) (955,842)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Borrowings from lines of credit, net 190,488 807,868

Payments on capital ieases (18,304) (43,127)
Proceeds from lortg-term borrowings 1,007,713 200,000

Payments on long-term borrowings (471.269) (422,991)

Proceeds from tax credits 100,000 •

Payments on tax credits (21,043) (21,043)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 787,585 520,707

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 207,811 281,634

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning of Year 1,369.092 1,087,458

Cash, Cash.Equiyalents,.and.Restricted Cash, End of Year $. 1,576.903 $  1,369.092

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow Information:

Interest paid

Non-cash financing activities

932,866 660.327

4.950,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



HARBOR HOMES, INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization:

The consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. include the
following related entities. All inter-entity transactions have been eliminated.
Unless othenwise noted, these consolidated entities are hereinafter referred to

as the "Organization".

Harbor Homes, Inc. - Creates and provides quality residential and
supportive services for persons (and their families) challenged by mental
illness and/or homelessness in the State of New Hampshire. Programs
include mainstream housing, permanent housing, transitional housing, and
emergency shelter, as well as comprehensive support services that
include behavioral healthcare, peer support programs, job training, a paid

,  , employment program, and social and educational activities. Harbor
Homes, Inc. also runs a health care clinic that is a Federally Qualified
Health Center (FQHC) offering primary medical services to the homeless
and/or low-income individuals.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC - A single-member. New Hampshire
Limited Liability Company, created to develop and manage a new
permanent supportive housing facility in Plymouth, New Hampshire
(Boulder Point, LLC) for homeless veterans. Harbor Homes, Inc. is the
sole member and the manager of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC.

Boulder Point, LLC - A New Hampshire Limited Liability Company,
whose purpose is to acquire, own, develop, construct and/or rehabilitate,
manage, and operate a new veterans housing project in Plymouth, New
Hampshire. Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a 0.01% investor member
and the manager member.

Harbor Homes H.Tric., Harbor Homes III, Inc., and HH Ownership, Inc.
- Provides residential services to the chronically mentally ill.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - Provides recovery support
services which are evidence-based, gender-specific, and culturally
competent, including residential, transitional housing, outpatient, intensive
outpatient, family-based substance abuse services, pregnant and
parenting women and children, and offender re-entry services initiative.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - Provides home healthcare services to residents
of Nashua and surrounding communities and strives to enhance the lives
of people with illness or injury through a cooperative relationship with the
community, professional medical service providers, and associations that
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serve people in need of healthcare. Homecare, rehabilitative, and private
duty nursing services are provided in the individual's home setting.

Welcoming Light, Inc. - Provides residential services to the elderly and
disabled and offers training for substance abuse and mental health issues
and training for nonprofit agencies in New Hampshire.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force, Inc. - Provides
educational case management, mental health and alternative therapy
assistance, housing assistance, food and nutritional guidance, substance
abuse counseling, and other related support services to people in the
Southern New Hampshire region infected with the HIV/Aids virus.

Milford Regional Counseling, Inc. - Operates a regional counseling
center serving the Greater Souhegan Valley area and provides
counseling, guidance, and consultation to individuals, groups, children,
adults, and families.

2. Significant Accounting Policies:

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for
long-terrn puiposes,~ar^c6nsidere^^ to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable, Net

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for
services and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is
based on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a
review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when
deemed uncollectable.



Patient Recelvabies, Net

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the
Organization's Federally Qualified Health Care Center. Additions to the
allowance for doubtful accounts result from the provision for bad debts.
Accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for doubt

ful accounts. The amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based

upon management's assessment of historical and expected net collections,
business and economic conditions, trends in Medicare and Medicaid health
care coverage, and other indicators.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have
third-party coverage, which includes patients with deductible and copayment
balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill, the
Organization analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance
for doubtful collections and a provision for doubtful collections, if necessary.
For receivables associated with self-pay patients, the Organization records a
significant provision for doubtful collections in the period of service on the
basis of its past experience, which indicates that many patients are unable to
pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The
difference between the billed rates and the amounts actually collected after all
reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the
allowance for doubtful collections.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and is stated at the lower
of cost or net realizable value determined by the first-in, first-out method.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair

values in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains
and losses_are included jn_ the.change.Jn met .assets in the accompanying
Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment additions over $5,000 are recorded at cost, if
purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years, or in the case of capitalized leased
assets or leasehold improvements, the lesser of the useful life of the asset or
the lease term. When assets are sold or othen/vise disposed of, the cost and
related depreciation is removed, and any resulting gain or loss is included in
the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs
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that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are
expensed.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to
result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair
value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset impairment in fiscal year
2018.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general
operations. . . .

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor
restrictions that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or the
passage of time. Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted
support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and reported in the Consolidated Statement of Activities as net assets
released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets whose use is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of time nor
can be fulfilled or otherwise removed. The restrictions stipulate that resources
be maintained permanently, but permit expending of the income generated
in accordance.with.donor.stipulations

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the

applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively.

Patient Services Revenues, Net

Patient services revenues, net is reported at the estimated net realizable
amounts from patients, third-party payers, and others for services rendered.
Self-pay revenue is recorded at published charges with charitable allowances
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deducted to arrive at net self-pay revenue. All other patient services revenue
is recorded at published charges with contractual allowances deducted to
arrive at patient services, net. Reimbursement rates are subject to revisions
under the provisions of reimbursement regulations. Adjustments for such
revisions are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Included in third-party
receivables are the outstanding uncompensated care pool payments.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its
charity care policy without charge or at amounts less than its established
rates. Since the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts deter
mined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are reported as deductions
from revenue.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as
increases in .unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets, is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets,
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with
payments due in future years have an implied restriction to be used in the
year the payment is due, and therefore are reported as temporarily restricted
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are
substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash
or investments. Contributed property and equipment is recognized as an
asset at1ts'e'stimate"d"fair"value"arthe~date"of"giftrprovided that the value of
the asset and its estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization
policy. Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses
at the estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If
the use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional
promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and
as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of
time and services in the Organization's program operations and in its fund-
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raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed services do not
meet the criteria for recognition in financial statements. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only if (a) the
services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to inde
pendent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Grant
Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the
disallowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or reductions of
future grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's manage
ment believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially
affect the financial position of the Organization.

•Functional Aflocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. The

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses presents the natural
classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Administration expenses include those costs that are not directly identifiable
with any specific program, but which provide for the overall support and
direction of the Organization.

Fundraising costs are expensed as incurred, even though they may result in
contributions received in future years. Additionally, advertising costs are
expensed as incurred.

Change in Net Assets Before Depreciation

Due to the significance of depreciation expense that is included in the
Organization's change in net assets, the change in net assets before
depreciation has been provided in the Consolidated Statement of Activities.

Income Taxes

The entities included in these consolidated financial statements (with the
exception of Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC and Boulder Point, LLC) have
been recognized by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from
federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as
organizations described in IRC Section 501(c)(3), qualify for charitable
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contribution deductions, and have been determined not to be private
foundations. A Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990),
is required to be filed with the IRS for each entity. In addition, net income that
is derived from business activities that are unrelated to an entity's exempt
purpose is subject to income tax. In fiscal year 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. and
Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc. were subject to unrelated business
income tax and filed an Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return
(Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC is a single-member. New Hampshire Limited
Liability Company, with Harbor Homes, Inc. as its sole member. Harbor
Homes Plymouth, LLC has elected to be treated as a corporation.

Boulder Point, LLC is a New Hampshire Limited Liability Company and has
elected to be treated as a partnership.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and "assump
tions thaT^ffect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates and those differences could

be material.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institu
tions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these
accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited

due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the
outstanding amounts are due from governmental agencies and entities
supportive of.the.Organization's mission. Investments are monitored regularly
by the Organization. Although the fair values of investments are subject to
fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the Organization believes that its
investment strategies are prudent for the long-term welfare of the
Organization.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain assets and liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial
statements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most
advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market condi
tions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly
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to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unob-
servable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs
are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assump
tions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
the best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the

■  asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial
statements are:

•  Jnitial-measurement-of- noncash gifts, including gifts-of-lnvestment
assets and unconditional contributions receivable.

•  Recurring measurement of investments - Note 4.

•  Recurring measurement of lines of credit - Note 9.

•  Recurring measurement of mortgages payable - Notes 10-12.

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash, receivables,
inventory, other assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, deferred
revenue, and other liabilities, approximate fair value due to the short-term
nature of the items.
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Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior year comparative totals have been reciassified
for comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year
consolidated financial statements.

3. Restricted Cash:

Restricted cash at June 30, 2018 consists of escrow and reserve accounts
which are held for various purposes, and are comprised of the following:

Construction escrows $ 471,769

Reserve for replacements 547,792 *
Residual receipt deposits 13,062 *
Security deposits 64,038

Total $ 1,096,661

*Required by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

4. Investments:

Investments consist of the following at June 30, 2018:

Fair

Value Level 1 Level 3

Equities $ 19,426 $ 19,426 $
Other investments 173,305 173,305

Total $ 192,731 $ 19,426 $ 173,305
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Beginning Balance, July 1,2017

Additions

Reductions

Transfers in to Level 3

Ending Balance. June 30, 2018

FairValue

Measurements

Using Significant

Unobservable Inputs

Level 3
Other Investments

$  161,946

11,359

$  173,305

Accounts Receivable. Net:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Grants

Residents

Other

Medicaid

Pledges
Security deposits

Total

$

Receivable

1,497,960

59,701

284,876

246,632

8,000

2,530

$

Allowance

(39,280)
$ 1,497,960

20,421

284,876

246,632

8,000

2,530

$  2,099,699 $ (39,280) $ 2,060,419

Patient Receivables, Net:

PatienLreceJyabl^s,^related to the Organization's Federally Qualified Health
Care Center, consists of the following at June 30, 2018:

Medicaid

Medicare

Other

Receivable

811,024

235,566

767,453

Allowance

(58,810)
(85,358)

(368,827)

752,214

150,208

398.626

Total $ 1,814,043 $ (512,995) $ 1,301,048
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7. Property. Equipment, and Depreciation:

A summary of the major components of property and equipment as of
June 30, 2018 is presented below:

Land $ 4,338,288

Land improvements 36,394
Buildings 27,785,977
Building improvements 7,031,206
Software 840,669

Vehicles 404,192

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 725,786

Dental equipment 150,405
Medical equipment 58,022
Construction in progress 1,292,454

Subtotal 42,663,393

Less: accumulated

depreciation (11,695,052)

Total $ 30,968,341

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $1,456,284.

8. Accrued Expenses:

Accrued expenses at June 30, 2018 include the following:

Mortgage interest $ 84,503
Payroll and related taxes 827,156
Compensated absences 784,710
Other 45,800

—-Total- $ 1.742,169 ^

9. Lines of Credit:

At June 30, 2018, the Organization had the following lines of credit available:

Harbor Homes, Inc. - $1,000,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A.
due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The Organization is
required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments to TD Bank, N.
A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted daily. As of June 30, 2018, the
credit line had an outstanding balance of $261,746 at an interest rate of
6.00%.
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Harbor Homes, Inc. - $500,000 line of credit available from TD Bank,
N.A. due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The
Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest
payments to TD Bank, N. A. at the bank's base rate plus 1% adjusted
daily. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding balance of
$440,462 at an interest rate of 6.00%.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism - $750,000 line of credit
available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on demand, and
secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a
minimum, to make monthly interest payments at the Wall Street Journal
Prime Rate plus 1.00% (6.00% at June 30, 2018) to Merrimack County
Savings Bank. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an outstanding
balance of $348,779.

Healthy at Home, Inc. - $250,000 of credit available from TD Bank, N. A.,
due October 31, 2018, secured by all business assets. The interest rate is
the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1% (6.00% at June 30, 2018).
The outstanding balance on the line of credit was $234,436 at June 30,
2018.

Lines of credit are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.

10. Mortgages Payable. Tax Credits:

Mortgages payable, tax credits consist of mortgages payable by Harbor
Homes, Inc. to the Community Development Finance Authority through the
Community Development Investment Program, payable through the sale of
tax credits to donor organizations, maturing in 2020, secured by real property
located at 59 Factory "Street In Nashua, NH. This amount is amortized over
ten years at zero percent interest. The amount due at June 30. 2018 is
$58,237.

Mortgages payable, tax credits also includes $100,000 of Low Income
HousingTa)rCredits (LlHTC) to Boulder Point, LLC.

Mortgages payable, tax credits are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as
Level 2.
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11. Mortgages Payable:

Mortgages payable as of June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Principal Payment Payment Interest

Balance Amount Freouencv Rate Maturitv Prooertv/Securitv

;  3,653,055 $  19,635 Monthly 4.00% 09/15/42 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH

3,375,000 - Interest only 4.00% 02/28/19 75-77 Northeastem Boulevard in Nashua, NH

1,146,876 7,879 Monthly 6.77% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH

1,125,000 - Interest only 6.00% 11/22/18 75-77 Northeastem Boulevard in Nashua, NH

1,118,886 6,193 Monthly 4.57% 12/05/33 335 Somerville Street in Manchester, NH

1,041,850 7,768 Monthly 7.05% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street In Nashua, NH
631,152 5,126 Monthly 6.97% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street In Nashua, NH
602,012 5,324 Monthly 4.38% 08/12/30 45 High Street in Nashua, NH
584,714 3,996 Monthly 4.75% 12/12/36 46 Spring Street In Nashua, NH
443,434 2,692 Monthly 4.75% 10/01/40 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
374,102 5,276 Monthly 9.25% 12/01/26 Adds Street In Nashua, NH

348,728 5,387 Monthly 4.75% 03/29/21 14 Maple Street in Nashua, NH

272,543 2,077 Monthly 4.83% 06/29/35 189 Kinsley Street in Nashua. NH
256,339 3,369 Monthly 9.28% 01/01/28 Chestnut Street in Nashua, NH

- 243,747 1,425 Monthly 4.75% 04/06/42 45 High Street in Nashua, NH
214,679 1,731 Monthly 7.00% 09/28/36 7 Trinity Street in Claremont, NH
192,497 3,184 - Monthly 9.25% 05/01/25 North Main Street In Nashua, NH . .

154,223 3,419 Monthly 1.00% 04/05/22 Mobile van

150,933 -3,419 Monthly 1.00% 03/05/22 615 Amherst Street in Nashua, NH

109,834 1,144 Monthly 4.64% 11/10/29 24 Mulberry Street in Nashua, NH
98,762 2,385 Monthly 9.25% 08/01/22 3 Winter Street in Nashua, NH

90,208 779 Monthly 4.32% 04/11/37 4 New Haven Drive, Unit 202 in Nashua, NH

55,000 - Interest only 3.08% 10/31/19 Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth, NH
45,227 299 Monthly 3.89% 10/01/35 59 Factory Street in Nashua, NH
20,058 1,552 Monthly 4.50% 07/13/19 15 Union Street in Milford, NH

;  16,348,859 Subtotal

(69,221) Less debt issuance costs

M96.6081 Less amount due within one year

15,783,030 Mortgages payable, net of current portion

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

-XmL
2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

Total

Amount

$  496,608

504,104

531,444

543,121

501,920

13,771,662

$  16.348.859

Mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as Level 2.
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12. Mortgages Payable, Deferred:

The Organization has deferred mortgages outstanding at June 30, 2018 total
ing $8,571,209. These loans are interest free, and are not required to be
repaid unless the Organization is in default with the terms of the loan
agreements or, for certain loans, if an operating surplus occurs within that
program.

Deferred mortgages payable at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

City of Manchester:

Somerville Street property

Total City of Manchester

City of Nashua:
Factory Street property
Spring Street property
Strawberry Bank condominiums
High Street fire system

Total City of Nashua

Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Strawberry Bank condominiums

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):

Boutder Point property
Factory Street property
Somerville Street property
Spring Street property
Amherst Street property

Total FHLB

NHHFA:

Amherst Street property
Factory Street property
Spring Street property
Charles Street property
Somerville Street property

Total NHHFA

Total Mortgages Payable, Deferred

300,000

300,000

580,000

491,000

80,000

65,000

1,216,000

436,400

436,400

952.713

400,000

400,000

398,747

385,000

2,536,460

1,500,000

1,000,000

550,000

32,349

1,000,000

4,082.349

$  8,571,209

Deferred mortgages payable are categorized in the fair value hierarchy as
Level 2.
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13. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at
June 30, 2018:

Purpose Amount

Special events $ 40,224
Housing 20,439
Client services 39,216

Clinic 2,656

Dental 10,000

Miscellaneous 5,770

Total $ 118,305

Net assets are released from restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purpose or by the passage of time.

14. Patient Services Revenue (FQHC). Net:

The Organization recognizes patient services revenue associated with services
provided through its FQHC to patients who have Medicaid, Medicare, third-
party payor, and managed care plans coverage on the basis of contractual
rates for services rendered. For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify
for charity care, the Organization recognizes revenue on the basis of its
standard rates for services provided or on the basis of discounted rates if
negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. Charity care services are
computed using a sliding fee scale based on patient income and family size.
On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the
Organization's uninsured patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the
services provided. Thus, the Organization records a provision for bad debts
related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided.

The Organization accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient
is classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies,
which define charity services as those costs for which no payment is antici
pated. The Organization uses federally established poverty guidelines to
assess the level of discount provided to the patient. The Organization is
required to provide a full discount to patients with annual incomes at or below
100% of the poverty guidelines, but may charge a nominal copay. If the patient is
unable to pay the copay, the amount is written off to charity care. All patients
are charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on house
hold size and household income. No discounts may be provided to patients
with incomes over 200% of federal poverty guidelines.
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Patient services revenue (FQHC), net of provision for bad debts and
contractual allowances and discounts, consists of the following:

2018 2017

Charitable Net Patient Net Patient

Gross Contractual Care Service Service

Charges Allowances Allowances Revenue Revenue

Medicaid $  1,788,985 S  (283,487) $ $  1,505,498 $  1,470,902

Medicare 1,649,191 (624,839) - 1,024,352 284,040

Third-party 1,597,970 (528,963) - 1,069,007 560,456

Siiding fee/free care 443,680 - (440,720) 2,960 18,900

Self-pay 427.971 (124,171) 303.800 301.645

Subtotal $  5.907,797 $  (1,437,289) $  (564,891) 3,905,617 2,635,943

Provision for bad debts (241.454) (205.782)

Total $  3,664,163 $  2.430,161

15. Client Rental Assistance:

The Organization has multiple grants requiring the payment of rents on, behalf
of the consumer. Rent expense totaling, approximately $6.5 million is comprised
of leases held in the Organization's name and the responsibility of the Organ
ization, leases in consumers' names, or rents paid as client assistance.

16. Pivmouth NH Veterans Housing Project:

The Plymouth NH Veterans Housing project is a planned permanent
supportive housing development of twenty-five one-bedroom apartments for
homeless veterans, and five two-bedroom apartments for low-income families
located on Boulder Point Drive in Plymouth, New Hampshire. The New
Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has awarded Harbor
Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the project. Harbor Homes, Inc.
is serving as the developer of the $7 million project and will receive a
developer fee, net of expenses in the amount of $472,000. When completed,
the 29,000 square foot apartment building will not only offer affordable,
permanent supportive housing for in-need veterans, but staff from Harbor
Homes, Inc. and White River Junction VA Medical Center will also provide
essential supportive services and case management on-site.

17. Deferred Compensation Plan:

In fiscal year 2018, the Organization offered a 401 (k) retirement plan. Upon
meeting the eligibility criteria, employees can contribute a portion of their
wages to the 401 (k) plan. The Organization matches a percentage of the
employee contribution based on years of service. Total matching
contributions paid by the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2018 were
$454,960.
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The Organization maintains a deferred compensation plan for certain
directors (the "SA Plan"). The deferred compensation liability under the SA
Plan was $16,800 as of June 30, 2018 and was recorded as a long-term
liability. This liability is offset by a corresponding long-term asset in the same
amount.

18. Concentration of Risk:

The Organization received revenue as follows:

Federal grants $ 30%
State, local, and other agencies 20%
Patient services revenues (other), net 15%
Patient services revenues (FQHC), net , 10%
Department of Housing and Urban Development 9%
Department of Veterans Affairs 6%
All other support and revenue 10%

Total $ 100%

19. Contingencies:

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal,
state, and local governments. Compliance with these laws and regulations is
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory
actions unknown or unassorted at this time. Government activity continues to
increase with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible
violations by healthcare providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regula
tions, which could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as
well as significant repayments for patient service previously billed. Manage
ment is not aware of any material incidents of noncompliance; however, the
possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if any, are
not presently determinable.

20. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-
18, State of Cash Flows (Topic 203): Restricted Cash. The amendments in
this update require that the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows explain
the change during the fiscal year of restricted cash as part of the total of cash
and cash equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents,
and restricted cash reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
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Position to the same such amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 480,242
Restricted Cash 1,096,661

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash
shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows $ 1.576,903

21. Change in Accounting Principle:

Effective July 1, 2017, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2015-11,
Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which
simplifies the subsequent measurement of inventory by replacing the lower of
cost or market test with a lower of cost or net realizable value test. Net

realizable value is defined as estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and
transportation. Prior to fiscal year 2018, the Organization reported inventory
at the lower of cost or market. This guidance is applied prospectively as
determined by the standard. There is no prior year or current year effect to
the financial statements as a result of this change.

22. Subseguent Events:

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 20, 2018, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

On August 29, 2019, Harbor Homes, Inc. signed a $400,000 short-term note
with a local bank. Interest on the note is required at 2.5% above the bank's
base rate for six months. The note is secured by two properties.

In October of 2018, Harbor Homes, Inc. sold two properties. The proceeds
were used to pay down the short-term note in the amount of $319,000.

Subsequent to year end, and upon completion of the Plymouth NH Veterans
Housing project, additional Low Income Housing Tax Credits (LIHTC) funding
of approximately $2.6 million will be provided to Boulder Point, LLC.

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority has
awarded Harbor Homes, Inc. $700,000 in state tax credits for the Plymouth
NH Veterans Housing project which will be received in fiscal years 2019 and
2020 and will consist of mortgages payable totaling $560,000 to the
Community Development Investment Program.
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HARSOR HOMES, INC.

ConsoBdathg Statement ol Financial Position
June 30.201B
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PETER J. KELLEHE W, LICSW

E-mail: p.kelleher@nhDartnershiD.org

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Present President & CEO, Southern NH HIV Task Force

2002-Present President & CEO, Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc./ Keystone Hall, Nashua, NH
1997-Present President & CEO, Healthy At Home, Inc., Nashua, NH

199S-Present President & CEO, Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc., Milford, NH
199S-Present President & CEO, Welcoming Light, Inc., Nashua, NH
1982-Present President & CEO, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH

Currently employed as chief executive officer of six nonprofit corporations (Partnership for Successful
Living) creating and providing residential and supportive services, mental health care, primary/preventive
health care, substance use disorder treatment and prevention services, supported employment and
workforce development, professional training, and in-home health care to individuals and families who are
homeless, living with disabilities, and/or are underserved/members of vulnerable populations. Responsible
for initiation, development, and oversight of more than 80 programs comprising a $22,000,000 operating
budget; proposal development resulting in more than $15,000,000 in grants annually; oversight of 350+
management and direct care professionals.

2003-2006 Consultant

Providing consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid service and menial health
organizations.

1980 - 1982 Real Estate Broker, LeVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist.

1979 - 1980 Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communities, Waltham, MA
Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to approximately 70 individuals with
mental and/or developmental disabilities. Hired, directly supervised, and trained a full-time staff of 20
residential coordinators. Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs.
Provided emergency consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group
homes and one sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibilities included some financial management,
quality assurance, and other accountability to state authorities.

1978 -1979 Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy course offered through the Social Work Department.

1977 - 1979 Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center II, a unit of
Middlesex County Hospital, Waltham, MA
Functioned as second in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members,

and implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afflicted with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, relaxation training.

1976 Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Out-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-time summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the
MIT community.

1971 - 1976 Program Counselor/Supervisor, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, MIT/Wellesley College
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and Wellesley, MA
Major responsibilities consisted of psycho educational counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy development.
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EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

1975 -1977 Simmons College School of Social Work, Boston, MA
Cambridge-Somerville Community Mental Health Program, MSW

1971 -1975 Clark University, Worcester, MA. Received Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Estate Broker - Massachusetts

1989 Academy of Certified Social Workers - NASW

1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker - Massachusetts

1994 State of New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Worker, MA LICSW

PLACEMENTS

1976 - 1977 Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalized patients.

1975 - 1976 Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Social Service Department, Cambridge, MA
Similar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983 - 1984 Antioch/New England Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Keene, NH
1983 - 1984 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1990 - 1991 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1978 - 1979 Middlesex Community College, Social Work Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

High School Valedictorian Award
National Institute of Mental Health Traineeship in Social Work
University of New Hampshire Community Development 2003 Community Leader of the Year
NAMI NH 2007 Annual Award for Systems Change

Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007
The Walter J. Dunfey Corporate Fund Award for Excellence in Non Profit Management 2009
NH Magazine Business Excellence Award 2010
Nashua Telegraph Humanitarian of the Year Award 2015
Lionel W. Johnson Housing Award, Champion of Human Rights 2015

MEMBERSHIPS

Member of the Department of Veterans Affairs Advisory Committee on Homeless Veterans
Board Member, Community Health Access Network (CHAN)
National Association of Social Workers

Former member of the National Healthcare for the Homeless Board of Directors

Former Chair, Governor's State Interagency Council on Homelessness/New Hampshire Policy Academy
Former Chair, Greater Nashua Continuum of Care
Former Board Member, New Futures, Concord, NH



Patricia A. Robitaille, CPA

PROFILE

•  12 years experience in Public Accounting
• Management experience
•  Diversified industx)' exposure
•  Counselor and mentor

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

•  Training experience

•  Knowledge of multiple computer programs

•  Excellent client rapport

•  Tax preparation experience

June 2009 - Present Chief Financied Officer Harbor Homes, Inc. and related
Partnership for Successful Living entities

•  Directly responsible for developing and managing budgets in excess of $44M, planning, cash
management. Controller, grants and contracts falling under the business/accounting
office . ..

•  Reviews and analyzes the monthly, quarterly and annual financial reports
•  Analyzes results of cash flows, budget expendirures and grant restrictions
•  Assists the President/CEO witli financial planning
•  Coordinates financing foFbbnds, long term commercial loans
•  Financial oversight of capital improvement projects
•  Responsible for the annual financial and single audits of the Organization and all related entides
•  Reviews Federal 990 tax returns and state returns

Jan. 2007 - Oct. 2008 Audit Manager Ernst Young LLP, Manchester, NH

Managed audits of private corporations with revenues up to $200 million

Assisted as manager of audits for public corporations with revenues up to $400 million

Reviewed and assisted preparation of financial statements, lOQ quarterly filings and lOK annual
filings

Analyzed and reviewed internal control under Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act

Prepared management comments in conjunction with material weakness or significant
deficiencies

Jun. 1997 - Jan. 2007 Audit Supervisor Melanson Heath & Company, P.C., Nashua, NH

•  Supentise/train various teams for commercial, not-for-profit, and municipal audits and agreed
upon procedures

•  Audit ser\tices include balance sheet reconciliation including inventory control

•  Preparation and presentation of financial statements

•  Preparation of management comment letters for internal quality improvement

•  Assist clients with all aspects of accounting

•  Preparation of budgets and cash forecasting

•  Consulting services to clients including maximization of profits



Extensive corporate tax preparation experience

1993 - 1997 Accounting/Office Manager Hammar Hardware Company, Nashua, NH

■ Management of a five-person staff

■ Oversaw accounts receivable, accounts payable and general ledger reconciliadon

■ Responsible for inventory management, preparation for year-end audit and collaboration with
external auditors

■ Prepared monthly internal financial statements

■ Responsible for payroll including quarterlies and year-end reporting

EDUCATION

1988-1991 Rivier College, Nashua, NH - Bachelor of Science, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Licensed Certified Public Accountant in the State of New Hampshire
Member of the New Hampshire Society of Certified Public Accountants
Member of the /Vmerican Institute of Certified Public Accountants

SOFTWARE EXPERIENCE

Excel, Word, Powerpoint, Pro-Fx Tax software, Pro-Fx Trial balance software, Quickbooks,
Peachtree, Abila Accounting Software, T-Value, various auditing software programs



Graciela Silvia Sironich-Kalkan MD.

Education

Universidad de Buenos Aires

Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires Argentina
MD, 12/21/1979

Work Experience:
Harbor Care Health and Wellness Center 45 High Street, Nashua, NH 03060
Medical Director, August 2012-Present General Practice, November 2011-Present

The Doctor's Office: Manchester, NH General Practice, November 2011-Present
First Line Therapy Lifestyle Educator, Coach. 05 2011-Present

American Red Cross Massachusetts Bay Chapter: Cambridge, MA
Health and Safety: Part Time Instructor in English and Spanish in CPR/AED Adults,
Children, Infants and First Aid. 06/2011-12/2012

Caritas Saint Elizabeth's Medical Center: Brighton, MA
Department of Internal Medicine: Observer 03/2003- 12/2003

Laurence General Hospital: Lawrence, MA
Observer, shadowing an Attending Neurologist 11/2002- 03/2003

Hewlett Packard, Medical Division: Andover MA
Medical Consultant for Latin America Field Operations 09/1997-12/1999

Navy Hospital Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo. Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Chief Surgical Care Unit
Clinic and administrative management of the Unit. Instructor for medical students and
residents. 01/92-03/97

Colegiales Clinic CiudadAutdnomadeBuenos Aires, Argentina
Critical Care Coordinator.

Contributed of the management of the Unit. Coordinator of Critical Care actualization
courses. 07/1991-061993

Clinica Modelo Los Cedros: San Justo, Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina
Chief, Intensive Care Unit
Clinic and administrative Management of the Unit. 07/1990-06/1991

Nephrologic Medical Center Oeste.
Ciudadela, Provincia de Buenos Aires, Argentina. AttendingPhysician, HemodialysisUnit.
02/1987-08/1988

Navy Hospital Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo.



Patricias Argentinas 351 ,Ciudad AutdnomadeBuenos Aires, Argentina. Attending Physician,
Critical Care Unit. 07/1984-01/1992

Navy Hospital Major Surgeon Pedro Mallo.
Patricias Argentinas 351, Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina. On call Physician,
Coronary Care Unit. 01/84-071984

Bazterrica Clinic

Juncal3002,Ciudad AutdnomadeBuenos Aires, Argentina. On call Physician, Critical Care
Unit.09/1980-12/1987

Residencies/Fellowships
Carltas Saint Elizabeth's Medical Center: Brighton, MA
General Surgery. 07/2004-06/2005
Marvin Lopez M.D. FACS, FRCSC. Hackford Alan M.D.

University of Salvador
Post Graduate School of medicine: Ciudad AutdnomadeBuenos Aires, Argentina.
Universitary Extension Critical Care05/1983-12/1984
Professor Eduardo Abbate MD, Course Director, Professor Luis J Gonzalez Montaner MD,
Dean of School of Medicine ~

Carlos Durand Hospital Cardiology Division: CiudadAutdnomadeBuenos Aires, Argentina
Cardiology-Internal Medicine. 03/1982-06/1984
Alberto Demartini MD., Professor German Strigler MD.

Ignacio Pirovano Hospital: Ciudad Autdnoma de Buenos Aires, Argentina.
Internal Medicine. 03/1981-02/1982

Professor Navarret MD. Professor Cottone MD. 03/1981 - 02/1982

CityofBuenosAiresMunicipality City of Buenos Aires Hospitals Critical CareUnits
Annual Course of theory and practice in Critical Care.
Professor FranciscoMaglioMD.,ClaudioGoldiniMD.,RobertoMenendezMD.,Professor
Roberto Padron MD. 03/1980-02/1981

Publications/ Presentations/Poster Sessions

Graciela Silvia Sironich, Biochemistry Faculty, UB A. Nutrition Department andMaterDei,
Nutrition in acute pancreatitis, Publication Date: 09/1999, Volume; 1, Pages: 235; 242.

Bazaluzzo J M; Sironich Graciela; Catalano H.; Quiroga J. La Prensa Medica Argentina,
Nutritional Evaluation by anthropometric method. Publication Date: 11/1992, Volume: N/A.

Sironich Graciela; Catalano H.; Mi lei L.; Lancestremere M. Magazine XXIV Annual
Meeting of the Argentine Society of Clinical Investigation. Sodium and plasmatic osmolarity
variations in neurosurgical patients. Publication Date: 11/1989, Volume: 1/1989, Pages: N/A.



JONATHAN W. BROWN

EDUCATION

2014 MBA

2012BSIT/BS

Masters Business Administration, University of Phoenix
Bachelor of Science Information Technology/Business Systems Analysis,
University of Phoenix

EXPERIENCE

01/17 HARBOR HOMES, INC., Nashua, NH 03060
501(c)(3) integrated health, social service, and housing system with revenues over $30MM

Clinic Director rOl/17 to present)
Responsibilities: Oversight of day-to-day operations of Harbor Care Health & Wellness
Center, a division of Harbor Homes, Inc. The organization maintains three sites including
a mobile van and provides medical, mental health, substance misuse, dental, pharmacy,
and 24x7 recuperative care with a focus on homeless and veteran clients. _

12/06 to 12/17 INDIAN STREAM HEALTH CENTER, INC., Colebrook, NH 03576

501(c)(3) Federally Qualified Health Center with revenues over $7MM

Chief Executive Officer (1/15 to 12/17)

Responsibilities: Management of two delivery sites covering three states providing
medical, mental health, substance misuse, and pharmacy services to approximately 4,000
patients annually. Reports to Board of Directors. Direct reports include Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Health Officer, Compliance Director, grants management and marketing
staff.

Accomplishments:
• National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) Level III Patient-Centered Medical
Home (PCMH) Accreditation
• 9% Operating Surplus in Fiscal Year 2015 and 8% Operating Surplus in Fiscal Year

-  2016 - - —

• Expansion of Oral Health, Mental Health, and Substance Misuse Services
• Hired eight clinical providers in 18 months (5 medical and 3 behavioral health)
• Instituted $15.00 livable wage
• Coordinated the development of a two-year strategic plan, including new Mission and
Vision Statements

• Grown grant funding approximately 125% since 2015
• Hired, promoted or realigned the following positions: Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Health Officer, Pharmacy Director, Behavioral Health Director, Medical Health Director
and Director of Human Resources.



Chief Financial Officer r8/12 to l/lS)

Responsibilities: Management of $5+ million budget, including two delivery sites
serving three states providing medical, mental health, substance misuse, and pharmacy
services to approximately 4,000 patients annually. Report to the Chief Executive Officer.
Direct reports included Information Systems Director, Facilities Directors, Front Desk
and Scheduling Manager, and Revenue Cycle Manager.
Accomplishments:
• Increased Net Fee Revenue 15% from prior period
• Increased Gross Collections from 42% to 86%

• Reduced Fee Receivables by 60% and Bad Debt Allowance by 60%
• Aggregate Insurance Days in AR = 45
• Managed $500,000 capital renovation project at Colebrook, NH facility which included

a pharmacy, facility generator, elevator, and ADA upgrades
• Opened retail and 340B Pharmacy in May 2013
• Managed Design/Build capital project to open satellite site in Canaan, VT in May 2014
• Averaged 9% Operating Margin Fiscal Years 2012 - 2015

Information Systems & Facilities Manager (12/06 to 7/12)

Responsibilities: Management of Electronic Health Record, Patient Management
System, hardware, software, network, all data systems, facility and environmental safety
and security. Report to Chief Financial Officer. Direct reports included Information
Technology Assistant, Housekeepers.
Accomplishments:
• Facilitated implementation of Electronic Health Record and Patient Management
System
• Transitioned paper payroll system to electronic system, including services from ADP
• Facilitated development of Bi-directional Lab interface with Hospital
• Managed $1 million capital project that included 2,400 sq/ft addition and renovations
• Managed capital campaign for above mentioned capital project that raised $188,000
• Developed IT and Facilities Management policies and procedures manual

PROFESSIONAL/COMMUNITY AFFILIATIONS

Medical Group Management Association, 2017
American College of Healthcare Executives (enrolled in Fellowship Program), 2017
North Country_Health Consortium (Board of Directors), 2017 {Treasurer 20 J 6 and 2017)
North Country Community Care Organization (Board of Directors), 2017
New Hampshire Rural Accountable Care Organization (Board of Directors), 2017
North Country Chamber of Commerce (Board of Directors), 2011-2014, 2017 {Vice
President 2012 and President 2013)
North Country Accountable Care Organization (Board Directors), 2015
George Washington University Geiger Gibson Capstone Fellowship in Community Health
Policy and Leadership, 2015
Neil and Louise Tillotson Grantee Learning Community, 2013
Office of Rural Health Policy Rural Voices Leadership Institute, 2012
Leadership North Country Program, 2011
Bi-State Leadership Development Program, 2010-2011



ELISABETH MAGUIRE, LICSW

Affiliations and Specialized Training

• MA LICSW since January 2009, NH LICSW since February 2014
• Member ofNational Health Service Corps 2016-2018
• Qualified to provide supervision for LICSW licensure since 10.3.2016
• Complicated Grief Treatment Level 1 and 2, Columbia University School of Social Work 2017
• Certificate Program in Cognitive and Behavioral Interventions, Boston University School of Social Work 2012
• Trained in DBT through Two Brattle Center 2005
• National Association of Social Workers member since 2005

Education

Smith College School for Social Work, Northampton, Massachusetts, MSW 2006
•  Thesis: Evidence-Based Practice and Clinical Social Work: The Ways in Which Social Workers Make

Practice Decisions and Track Client Progress
•  Community Project: Developed focus group on cultural issues and domestic violence for the Women's

Resource Center of Rhode Island

Saint Michael's College, Colchester, Vermont, BA, Psychology 2001
•  Degree granted Cum Laude __
• Member of Psi Chi National Honor Society

Clinical Experience

Behavioral Health Psychotherapist and Clinical Supervisor, Harbor Care Health and Wellness Center,
Nashua, NH (February 2015 to present)
•  Developed Partial Hospital Program for individuals with co-occurring mental health and substance use

disorders

•  Provide management and supervision to therapy staff and students in Behavioral Health Department
•  Conduct individual psychotherapy with adults using CBT informed treatment to an array of mental health

and addictive disorders for clients experiencing a variety of significant psychosocial stressors, including
homelessness and poverty

•  Provide biopsychosocial assessments and psychotherapy taking into account cultural background, gender,
sexual orientation, and other types of diversity

•  Collaborate with a multidisciplinary treatment team

Case Manager, McLean Hospital, Alcohol and Addictions Unit, Belmont, MA (January 2018 to present)
• Assess psychosocial needs of clients admitted for treatment of substance use disorder
•  Collect collateral information from friends and family regarding client's history of substance use
•  Collaborate with multidisciplinary team consisting of physicians, nurses, and mental health staff
•  Complete timely documentation in EPIC medical record system

Clinical Social Worker, Department of Mental Health, Tewksbury Hospital, Tewksbury, MA (May 2014 to
May 2016)
•  Assess biopsychosocial needs of chronically mentally ill clients who frequently are dually diagnosed
•  Provide case management for clients of diverse cultural and socioeconomic backgrounds
•  Create treatment plans as a collaborative effort with clients and the multi-disciplinary team
•  Interface with mental health providers within and outside of the Department of Mental Health
•  Coordinate care, outpatient mental health therapy referrals, and assist in securing housing in the process of

discharge planning

Outpatient Mental Health Clinician, Brigham and Women's Faulkner Hospital, Boston, MA (February 2010 to
January 2015)



•  Conduct outpatient individual psychotherapy with adults using CBT and DBT informed treatment
modalities to address mood and anxiety disorders and adjustment to life transitions and medical issues

•  Provide biopsychosocial assessments and psychotherapy taking into accoimt cultural background, gender,
sexual orientation, and other types of diversity

•  Collaborate with a multidisciplinary treatment team
•  Conduct telephone screenings on intake line and determine appropriateness for individuals to have a

detailed in-person assessment for psychotherapy

Medical Psychiatry Service Clinical Social Worker, Brigham and Women's Faulkner Hospital, Boston, MA
(October 2011 to May 2014)
•  Participate in psychiatric assessment of patients from diverse backgrounds presenting to the emergency

department and on medical floors while taking into account various biopsychosocial influences
•  Collect collateral information from family members, outpatient treatment teams, and other agencies
•  Obtain insurance verification and authorization
•  Facilitate timely patient dispositions through coordination of hospital admission or referral to lower level of

care

Inpatlent Psychiatry Clinical Social Worker, Brigham and Women's Faulkner Hospital, Boston, MA (October
2006 to February 2010)

•  Perform biopsychosocial assessments on individuals experiencing acute psychological distress
•  Create treatment plans for patients accoimting for their needs as a whole person
•  Provide individual psychotherapy for patients experiencing mood and anxiety disorders, thought disorders,

and substance abuse problems
•  Provide family assessments and family therapy
•  Provide DBT informed group therapy
•  Provide coordination of care and outpatient mental health therapy referrals in the process of discharge

planning
•  Treatment provided in the context of collaborating with an interdisciplinary treatment team on a fast paced

23-bed psychiatric unit

Social Work Intern, Adult Morning Dialectical Behavior Therapy Program and Adult Evening Program,
Two Brattle Center, Cambridge, MA (September 2005 to April 2006)
• Work with highly suicidal and self-injuring adults to decrease life threatening behaviors and build a life

worth living through the use of manualized treatment methods
•  Co-lead DBT skills groups with staff psychologists and psychiatrists
•  Help clients increase their interpersonal effectiveness, regulate emotions, tolerate distress, and become

more mindful of the present moment
•  Provide on-call skills coaching to clients in crisis in order to help clients use skills learned while in

treatment at Two Brattle Center

• Member of Two Brattle Center Dialectical Behavior Therapy consultation team
•  Co-lead psychodynamic groups with staff psychologists and mental health clinicians
•  Provide clinical administration and case management to yoimg adults

Social Work Intern, Adolescent Inpatient Unit and Safe Quest Partial Hospital Program, Bradley Hospital,
East Providence, RI (September 2004 to April 2005)
•  Provide family therapy to families of adolescent patients
•  Gather collateral information from multiple sources
•  Assist in af\er-care planning as a member of a multidisciplinary team
•  Lead weekly therapeutic activity group for six to eight adolescents to prevent the need for higher level of

care

•  Conduct bi-weekly individual therapy for three adolescents in crisis

Television Appearance

•  Interviewed on WMUR NH Channel 9 on connection between mental health and substance use disorders,

July 24, 2017



Jennifer Carol Parson, R.N., B.S.N.

OBJECTIVE:

To combine my global health & commun|ty-based work experience into a public health position, which focuses
on prevention and intervention. My goal is to serve the underserved, and to combine my nursing skills, with my
training and organizational skills. I wish to mix clinical work with health administration and serve the community,
preferably in a community health organization.

EXPERIENCE

Harbor Care Health and Weilness Center November 2018 - Present

Program Manager of HIV Early Intervention Services
Coordinating and/or delivering training of Primary Care staff in rapid ROC testing: HIV test counseling;
linkage of newly diagnosed and PrEP
Coordinating the adoption/adaptations of a behavioral intervention for High Risk Negatives according to
CDC requirements; training on the intervention and delivery in Primary Care
Coordinating and delivering trainings on linkage and health literacy to newly diagnosed to Primary Care
Providers

Assisting in the creation of PrEP program and delivery In Primary Care

Assisting in the delivery of all EIS services in Primary Care as needed.

Writing and maintaining EIS policies and protocols.

Assistance and guid^ce on updating EHR to assist with data collection, PrEP treatment, and EIS referral
tracking and services.

Outreach to key points of entry in the community and the setting up a formal referral site for support services
to EIS newly diagnosed and high=risk patients. '

Creation of program educational material, communications, flyers for EIS
Maintaining compliance with program funding contracts; communication with funders; work plans and
documentation of deliverables; and regular required data collection and reporting.

Facilitating internal and extemal communications to support EIS program service delivery.
Ongoing maintenance, quality assurance, evaluation and monitoring of EIS services

Personal self-care Feb 2015 - November 2018

Luang Prabang Hospital for Children Luang Prabang, Laos August 2014 - February 2015
Director of Nursing

•  Worked side by side with local and ex-patriot staff to open up the first children's hospital in Luang
Prabang, Laos.

•  Provide access to early health care in the areas of communicable disease, HIV screening/treatment,
pediatrics, and health education.

•  Recruited and hired local nurses to begin a 12-week training program in English and Pediatric nursing.

•  Provided lectures and one-on-one mentorship to nurses and doctors.

•  Equipment procurement from multiple vendors for the new hospital.

•  Assisted in grant writing in the area of in^nt and child mortality.

•  Oversaw all nursing, equipment and supply related issues.
University of California, San Francisco (UCSF) San Francisco, CA
Staff Nurse II, Intensive Care Nursery June 2000 - February 2005
Per Diem Nurse, Intensive Care Nursery November 2005 - November 2006
Staff Nurse III, Pediatric/Neonatal Critical Care Emergency Transport Team July 2007 - February 2014
Dispatch Cail Center and Administration Assistant February 2014 - August 2014

•  Served as a staff nurse at this level 3 neonatal and pediatric hospital.

•  Stabilization and transport of critically ill infants and children to UCSF.
•  Cardiac Care Team 2001-2002.

•  Serve as a admission nurse, attending all high-risk deliveries.

•  Exhibit motivation and dedication by providing the highest quality of care to each patient and their
families.



•  Worked in the life-flight dispatch unit in a fast-paced call center answering calls, bridging to multiple
outside modes of transportation.

•  Updated EMR in the data collection per state guidelines for all neonates (<28 days) for referral
tracking and available services.

•  Tracking different team positions at all times and entering that data into our database.
•  Filing, faxing, helping of presentations, payroll, and general administrative work,

international Pediatric Outreach Project (iPOP) I Global Strategies
Director of Nursing 2006 - 2014

•  Served as a board member and nursing director for multiple projects in:

•  Saragur India:
•  Democratic Republic of Congo, Africa: EIS for at risk sex workers in the area of primary care,

HIV screening, prevention, and treatment

•  Liberia. Africa: Focused on matemal child transmission of HIV. Data entry for tracking and access
to services in at risk communities.

•  Fundralsing and tax management for IPOP

•  Organizing International transportation, accommodations, and insurance for volunteers.
•  Keeping a calendar for board meetings, fundraisers, and passport information.
•  Maintaining potential donor and tax credit database.
•  Providing support to other board members writing proposals and grants.

Angkor Hospital for Children Slem Reap, Cambodia March 2005 - August 2005
Director of Nursing Education November 2006 - July 2007

•  Worked at this NGO, helping to improve nursing knowledge when caring for infants and children with
intensive care needs.

•  Organization of nursing documentation for the ICU.
•  Worked as a technical advisor in the newly accredited teaching hospital.
•  Daily hands on nursing teaching and lectures regarding patient care, procedure, and critical thinking.

•  Created nursing protocols to standardize and improve patient care.
•  Established weekly nursing journal club enabling nurses can stay on top of current evidence-based

practice.

•  Educated staff on computer use from internet skills to spreadsheets and work documents.

•  Focus on Matemal child prevention of HIV transmission
Partners in Health Neno, Malawi May 2013 - August 2013
Nurse Educator

•  Instruction to local health care providers on the topic of Helping Babies Breath.
•  Establish a 4 bed Neonatal Unit.

•  Provided lectures and one-on-one mentorship in the delivery and care of neonates.
•  Provided housing for at risk mothers at 32 weeks gestation for early detection of HIV. prevention of

transmission to unborn child, and access to health providers in home villages.

Heal Africa, Goma, Democratic Republic of Congo March 2008 - June 2008
Director of Nursing Education and Recruitment June 2009 - May 2010
•  Instruction to local health care providers on the topic of Neonatal Resuscitation
•  Establish a 10 bed Neonatal Unit.

•  Identified and retained dedicated neonatal nurses and provided one on one mentorship in providing
care of the sick neonate.

•  Established nursing charting and unit protocols that are now serving as a role model for the rest of the
hospital.

•  Provided long-term housing and skills training to intermittently displaced women and their children due to
war. WF, rape, HIV ostracized from their home villages.

•  HIV and SID screening, prevention and treatment.
Swam! VIvekanada Youth Memorial Hospital Saragur, India September 2005 - October 2005
Research Nurse August 2007 - October 2010

•  Worked with this NGO, helping to improve nursing knowledge in basic newborn care.
•  Started a research project dealing with infant mortality.



•  Returned to SVYM to follow up on research and perform data entry and the surveys that were given to
both hospitals bom babies and village bom babies.

Luclle Packard Children's' Hospital @ Stanford Palo Alto, California February 2003 - November 2003
Relief Nurse, Intensive Care Nursery

•  Served as a relief nurse at this Level 3 regional referral center. Responsible for providing care similar to that
listed at UCSF. (see above)
CERTIFICATIONS I LICENSE

•  Basic Life Support (BLS), Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP), Pediatric Advanced Life Support
(PALS)

•  Registered Nurse • State of California
•  Introduction To Medical Coding - May - July 2018

EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND

•  SAN FRANCISCO STATE UNIVERSITY San Francisco. California May 2000
Bachelor of Science in Nursing

•  FOOTHILL COLLEGE Los Altos. California June 1997

Associates In Science

SKILLS

Word. Excel, PowerPoint. Salesforce, Golden Hour, Social Media, ICQ -10 CM. CPT



Harbor Homes, Inc.

May 30, 2019

EIS Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Peter Kelleher President and CEO $164,311 1% $1,643

Patricia Robitaille Chief Financial Officer $150,000 1% $1,500

Graciella Sironich-Kalkin Medical Director $208,000 3% $6,240

Jonathan Brown Clinic Director $130,000 2% $2,600

Elisabeth Maquire Clinical Supervisor $75,000 13.3% $10,000

Jennifer Parson Program Manager $69,010 100% $69,010
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Jeffrey A, Mcycn '
Commbsioner

Liu M. Morris

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 ExL 4501

Fax:603-271.4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov

January 29, 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

;  REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services,
Bureau of Infectious Disease Control, to enter into an agreement with Harbor Homes, Inc, Vendor
#155358-8001, 45 High Street Nashua, New Hampshire, 03060, to provide early intervention services
and behavioral counseling to Individuals at risk for acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus, in an
amount not to. exceed $347,184, effective Governor and the Executive Council approval through June
30,2019. 17% Federal Funds, 83% Other Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for SFY 2018 and SFY 2019, with authority to
adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through
the Budget Office without approval from Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902510-75360000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, STD/HIV
PREVENTION

Fiscal Year Class/Account
Class Title

Job

Number
Total Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $30,000

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024000 $30,000

Total $60,000

05-95-90-902510-22290000 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, SOCIAL
SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH.
PHARMACEUTICAL REBATES

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title
Job

Number
Total Amount

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024611 $143,592

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90024611 $143,592

Total $287,184



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

*  • purpose of this request Is to provide early intervention services and behavioral counseiirigto individuals who have been identified to meet the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's
guidelines for routine Human Immunodeficiency Virus testing. Individuals with Human
mmunodeficiency Virus who receive medical care earlier, before their condition advances to Acquired
mmune Deficiency Syndrome, improve their health outcomes, which decreases the likelihood of
transmitting the virus to others. The United States Prevenlative Services Taskforce also recognizes
that t^haviorai counseling inten/entions in a clinical setting are an Important means of addressing
prevalent health-related behaviors, such as risky sexual behavior.

The Contractor will provide early intervention services, including routine Human
Immunodeficiency Virus testing, to make individuals aware of their Human Immunodeficiency Virus
status. Individuals who test positive for Human Immunodeficiency Virus will receive health education
and linkage to Human Immunodeficiency Virus care services. Linkage to care is essential in ensuring
an individual Is provided the opportunity to be placed on anti-retroviral medication with a goal of viral
suppression, which greatly decreases the likelihood that the individual will transmit the virus to others.
Additionally, the Contractor will provide behavioral counseling to clients who test negative for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus but are at high risk of acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus. The goal of
the behavioral counseling will be to identify behavior changes to reduce the individual's risks for
acquiring Human Immunodeficiency Virus.

Harbor Homes, Inc.. a Federally Qualified Community Health Center, was selected for this
project through a competitive bid process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department's
website from January 27, 2017 through March 9, 2017. The Department received one proposal. The
proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program-specific knowledge. The
review included a thorough discussion of the strengths and weaknesses of the proposals/applications
The Score Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement: - . . . .

Referral and Linkaoe to Care - Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests linked to HIV
care. Percentage of individuals with positive HIV tests that attend their first appointment:

95% of ail newly identified HIV cases will have a documented referral to HIV medical care
at the time of positive test result.

90% of ali newly identified HIV cases will have documented attendance at their first HIV
medical care appointment within 30 days of date of referral.

2. HIV Testing - Number of tests performed. The vendor(s) will perform a minimum number of (to
be determined within 150 days of award) HIV tests annually following the testing
recommendations outlined in the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Routine HIV
Testing Guidelines. 2006.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

3- Behavioral Counselinc. The vendor(s) will ensure that the Behavioral Counseling intervention
will serve individuals at high risk of acquiring HIV.

75% of the Behavioral Counseling caseload shall consist of HIV negative individuals who
identify with one of the following risk factors:

o Male who at the time of referral reports having unprotected sex with men; and

o Person who injects drugs who at the time of referral reports.sharing drug injection
equipment.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, early intervention services
may not be available to New Hampshire residents who are unaware of their Human Immunodeficiency
Virus status. This could result In Increased transmission of Human immunodeficiency Virus in the
community. Behavioral counseling may not be provided to clients, which would otherwise reduce their
risk of acquiring Human immunodeficiency Virus with the goal of preventing new Human
Immunodeficiency Virus in the community.

Area served: Nashua Area.

Source of Funds: 17% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
Integrated Prevention and Surveillance Grant, CFDA# 93.940, FAIN U62PS924538. and 83% Other
Funds from Pharmaceutical Rebates.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lisa M. Morris, MSSW
Director

Approved by:

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health arui Human Servicee' MiuUtn to join communitiet and families
in providing opportunities for dUans to achieve health and independence.



Early Intervention Services and Behavioral

Counseling for Human Immunodeficiency
Virus

RFP Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

RFP-2017-BIDC-15-EARLY

RFP Number Reviewer Names

1. Lindsay Pierce,

Bidder Name IVIaximu

m Points

Actual

Points

2. Lisa OueHette, Program
Manager

1.

Harbor Homes, Inc. 200 150

3 Lisa Roy, Viral Hepatitis
Program Coordinator

200 0

4. Richelle Swanson.

Administratorlll

200 0

5. Jen Conroy, Business

Administrator II



Subject: Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for H!V fRFP-2Q]7-BrDC-15-EARLYl ^ (version 5/8/15)
Nfltice. This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and

Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in vmting prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agr^c as follows:

general provisions

L  IDENTlFiCATION.

1.1 State Agency Name .
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.3 Contractor Name
Harbor Homes, Inc.

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 882-3616 X 1103

1.2 Slate Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord,NH 03301-3857

1.4 Contractor Address

45 High Street
Nashua, NH 03060

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
E. Maria Rcincmann, Esq. Director

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902510-75360000

05-95-90-902510-22290000

1.11 rac nature

0/1

1.13

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2019

1.8 Price Limitation

$347,184

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9330

ment- "Slateof .Countyof

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

.On #a./ n iioil , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
niQicated in block 1.12. ^ '

1-13.1 Signature or Notary Public or Justice of the Peace ~

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace ~

f Lit r J. .. W!UMMC.MAFrnN
^'^'s^ofthePBaoe'NewKampshlm

U4 Sta.AgencyS.„amre Signatory

Ol-'lAaj Dale:;Q5'i|g ^i^OTOI^iS,
1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

1  Director, On:

1.17 Approval by If

By:

e Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

cil (^pplicablej
%

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Excciifiive Council

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perfonn,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics
hercunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Conuactor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
ConUactor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the Stale be liable for any
payments hercunder in excess of such available appropriated
fWids. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICEn'RICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the con^lete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The Slate reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RS A
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, die
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Cootractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, crccd, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Stales Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all.rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who Is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the Slate's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor, shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
noi timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreerrienl and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period finm the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Drfault; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, anal)^,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Slate.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to

' and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

U. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of iLs
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any •
interest in this Agreement without the prior writtCT notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms aiKi endorsements proved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by instu'ers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall ftimish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also iumish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, cerlificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The cerlificatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificaie(s) of
insuraiice shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
(" Workers' Compensaliorj").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H, RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
ftimish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provnsjorw hereof after any^Ev^ of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of

. Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Stales Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or disclwge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, arid is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference puqjoses only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersties all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicabie to Ail Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language
assistance services they will provide to persons with limited English
proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services
within ten (10) days of the contract effective date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the
New Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have
an impact on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the
right to modify Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this
Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Early Intervention Services (EIS) for Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) to all ElS-eliglble Individuals receiving
primary care services in order to assist individuals who are unaware of
their HIV status to learn of their status and receive either referral to
prevention services or referrals to linkages to HIV care services.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide Behavioral Counseling services to all EIS
eligible individuals who test negative through EIS for HIV but are identified
to be at high risk of acquiring HIV.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop policies and procedures for delivering Early
Intervention Services (EIS) and Behavioral Counseling Interventions in
accordance with EIS Standards of Care.

1.6. The Contractor shall hire one (1) PTE Master's level program coordinator
and one (1) .250 PTE Behavioral Health counselor, both of which shall be
dedicated in their capacity to perform duties specified in Section 2 Scope
of Work.

2. Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall develop an Early Intervention Service (EIS) Program
that follows the Department's New Hampshire Ryan White Program
Standards of Care for EIS and the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention Routine HIV Testing Guidelines (2006).

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure the EIS Program services include but are not
limited to:

2.2.1. Routine HIV Testing and Targeted Counseling:

2.2.2. Referral Services;

2.2.3. Linkage to Care; and

2.2.4. Health Education and literacy training to HIV positive clients to
navigate the HIV system of care.

™1~1%EARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall develop Behavioral Counseling ihterventlons as
outlined by the United States Preventative Services Taskforce (USPSTF).

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure Behavioral Counseling, as developed in
collaboration with the Department, is provided to individuals who are
identified as being at high risk for acquiring HIV.

2.5. The Contractor shall reach the target population through external referrals,
■  outreach activities: and strong collaborative relationships with area
agencies. The Contractor shall:

2.5.1. Ensure clinical staff is supplied with a fact sheet that provides
information and answers to questions that may be received from
patients about the HIV testing program.

2.5.2. Ensure clinical staff is supplied with scripts to address testing
and HIV risk with patients and to make effective referrals to HIV
testing and health clinicians.

2.5.3. Distribute printed materials regarding EIS to key agencies and
public areas in the City of Nashua.

2.5.4. Ensure printed materials in Section 2.5.3 above include, but are
not limited to:

2.5.4.1. Flyers.

2.5.4.2. Testing cards.

2.5.4.3. Condoms with testing information labels.

2.5.4.4. Informational pamphlets.

2.5.5. Ensure information regarding EIS is available on-line through
the clinic website and PSL partners' Facebook pages. The
Contractor shall encourage:partner agencies to-provide similar
access to EIS/HIV information on their websites.

2.5.6. Provide education and in-house training to partner agency staff
on HIV testing and effective referrals to services.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide patient follow up that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.6.1. Informing patients on confidentiality and how the testing process
will occur.

2.6.2. Informing patients with confirmed positive test results of
linkages to medical care and support around partner testing.

2.6.3. Providing health education and literacy training.

2.6.4. Notifying the Department's Infectious Disease Prevention,
Investigation and Care Services Section (IDPIQS§) by

Hartx)r Homes. Inc. Exhibit A
RFP.2017.BIDC-15-EARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

telephone of all HIV preliminary positive test results no later
than 4:00 PM the following business day after the day of testing.

2.6.5. Assisting the Department's IDPICSS with contacting patients
with a positive HIV diagnose for the purpose of eliciting,
identifying and locating information on sexual and/or needle-
sharing partners.

2.6.6. Providing health,education and literacy training.

2.7. The Contractor shall conduct HIV testing activities that include, but are not
limited to:

2.7.1. Ordering HIV rapid test and specimen collection kits from the
Department.

2.7.2. Providing HIV testing in primary care settings that are simple,
accessible, and straight forward in order to minimize client
barriers.

2.7.3. Providing HIV testing utilizing:

2.7.3.1. Fourth (4th) generation HIV testing technology for
individuals who meet the criteria of a recent exposure
to HIV.

2.7.3.2. Rapid HIV testing technology for all individuals who
do not meet the criteria of a recent exposure to HIV.

2.7.4. Completing specimen collection for the HIV tests.

2.7.5. Submitting specimens the Department within 72 hours of
specimen collection.

2.7.6. Completing Department-approved training for:

2.7.6.1. The operation of the rapid test technology.

2.7.6.2. Data collection.

2.7.6.3. Counseling and referral services.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure program staff attend meetings and trainings
that include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Implementation of Routine HIV Testing in Health Care Settings:
Issues for Community Health Centers.

2.8.2. The 2013 US Preventive Services Task Force (USPSTF)
Recommendations on HIV Testing.

2.8.3. Sexually Transmitted Diseases Treatment Guidelines.

2.8.4. Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP).

2.8.5. Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP).

Hartxjr Homes, Inc. Exhibit a Contractor initial
RFP.2017^IDC-15-EARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

2.8.6. Revised Recommendations for HIV Testing of Adults,
Adolescents, and Pregnant Women in Health Care Settings.

3. Reporting Requirements and Record Keeping
3.1. The Contractor shall collect and submit forms that include client level

name-based data as specified in the reporting forms provided by the
Department. The Contractor shall;

3.1.1. Complete one (1) form per client.

3.1.2. Collect forms in a secured area for bulk submission to the

Department on the first (1st) business day of every month.
3.2. The Contractor shall maintain ongoing medical records for each individual

se'rved. Information in each record shall include, but is not limited to:
3.2.1. Documentation of on-site provisions for all EIS services and

Behavioral Counseling.

3.2.2. Reports of the number of HIV tests conducted and positive test
results.

3.2.3. Documentation of HIV testing activities and methods.

3.2.4. Documentation of the number of referrals for health care and
supportive services, as per DPHS Guidelines.

3.3., The Contractor shall document the number of referrals and connections to
Behavioral Counseling addressing the risk for HIV acquisition.

RF^^/o'JrB^cTs-EARLY Con.ac,or
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

4. Tasks & Deliverables

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following Tasks and Deliverables begin as
specified by the Begin Date and Staff detailed in the Work Plan Table
below.

WORK PLAN TABLE

Deliverable

4.1.1. Early

Intervention

Services (EIS)
Coordinator/Pr

ogram

Coordinator

4.1.2. Fully Trained

Testing and

Counseling

Staff

Task

Finalize job description; advertise
position; and collect applications.

Interview applicants and hire qualified
individual.

4.1.3. Confidential

HIV Testing

Technology

and

Counseling

Clinic Space

Complete Harbor Care Clinic
Orientation and Training for new EIS
Coordinator, which includes but is not
limited to;

•  State of NH Fundamentals.

•  Training for required staff.

• Work with the Department to
develop a risk reduction
counseling model that is
supported by the CDC and
providing Training for Coordinator
and Clinical Supervisor.

•  In-house training, as developed
with the Department, for any
additional staff as helpful to
support the program

Begin
Date

Month

1

Month

2&3

Identify a space where testing and
counseling can be completed at the
Harbor Care Clinic. Set up space for
testing and counseling. Identify rapid
test technology and confirmation
testing technology and institute clinical
requirements to store test kits,
controls and perform tests according
to manufacturer's protocol and
procedures.

Staff

HR, Harbor

Homes VP,
Medical

Director

HR. EIS
Coordinator,
Clinical

Supervisor,
State of NH.

Month

1

Harbor

Homes VP.
Medical

Director

Harbor Homes. Inc.
RFP-2017-BIOC-15-EARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

4.1.4. Community
Advisory
Board

Program

Input

Identify potential , community
coliaborators and convene a
board meeting to assist with
shaping training, engagement,
and to establish referral sites

Month 2-3 EIS

Coordinator

4.1.5. Training for

Clinical Staff

Training for

Community
Referral Sites

Develop concise trainings to help
facilitate effective referrals
internally from clinicians at Harbor
Care Clinic and externally from
partner community sites

Month 3 CAB, EIS
Coordinator,
Clinical

Supervisor

4.1.6. Fully Trained

Clinical Staff

and

Community
Referral Sites

Provide training to clinical staff
and community referral sites to
support effective referrals into
testing and counseling

Month 3 & 4 EIS

Coordinator

4.1.7. Referral and

Tracking Plan
Finalize plan to document , track
and follow up on internal and
external referrals

Month 3 CAB, EIS
Coordinator

4.1.8. Outreach

Materials and

Plan

Finalize plan for outreach and
engagement and develop any
needed materials.

Month 3 & 4 CAB. EIS
Coordinator

4.1.9. Embed HIV

Testing and

CDC-

Supported
Risk

Reduction

Couriseling,
as Developed

with the

Department,
In Clinic Flow

and .

Evaluation

Program

Develop clinic plan to embed Risk
Reduction Counseling and HIV
testing into routine clinical care
flow and evaluate outcomes

Month 3 & 4 EIS

Coordinator,
Clinical

Supervisor

Harbor Homes, Inc.
RFP-2017.BIEX:-15-EARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

4.1.10. Quality

Assurance

Plan for Risk

Reduction

Counseling

Finalize a QA plan for Risk
Reduction Counseling in clinical
setting

4.1.11. Implementing

HIV Testing

and Risk

Reduction

Counseling

4.1.12. Maintenance

Clinicians refer high risk
individuals for testing and
counseling. One session of Risk
Reduction Counseling is
conducted with HIV Test (to
include tracking of number of tests
performed). Reactive Tests are
scheduled for return visit for
confirmatory test results and
Second Session of Risk Reduction
Counseling. Positives linked to
medical care and ASO (to include
documentation of percentage of
newly diagnosed referred to care
and percentage of those attending
first medical care appointment).
Provide referrals, follow-up and
tracking (to include tracking of
behavioral counseling to targeted
populations -MSM and IDU).
implement QA Plan. Implement
Evaluation Plan. Implement
Outreach Plan. Collect data and
Report as required.

Month 3

&4

Month :

&

Ongoing

BIS

Coordinator,
Harbor

Homes VP,
Clinical

Supervisor,
CAB

BIS

Coordinator,
Medical

Director,
Clinical

Supervisor

Communicate with staff in periodic
meetings. Communicate with
community partners and referral
agencies. . as needed. Make
improvements, as needed.
Identify additional trainings for
staff. Attend State meetings and
trainings, as required. Complete
required reporting to the State.
Institutionalize program into
routine clinical care.

Month 4

&

Ongoing

BIS

Coordinator

Hdrtx)r Homes, Inc.
RFP-201 r-eiDC-IS-EARLY
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Early Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit A

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of the individuals receiving primary
care services also receive Early Intervention Services (BIS) as part of their
regular primary care yearly appointment.

5.2. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of individuals who are identified as
positive or high risk for HIV receive Behavioral Counseling as described in
this contract.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of individuals receiving HIV testing also
receive, at a minimum, one (1) Risk Reduction Counseling session.

5.4. The Contractor shall ensure 65% of staff are trained in Risk Reduction
Counseling by June 30, 2018.

5.5. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of staff and 75% of Community
Partners are trained in Risk Reduction Counseling no later than June 30
2019.

RF^S)77"i%EARLY . Con.a.ctor,n„^,;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Eariy Intervention Services and Behavioral Counseling for
Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

1.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual costs incurred in
accordance with the approved budget line items in Exhibit B-1 Budget and Exhibit B-
2 Budget

1.2. The ̂ ntractor shall submit an Invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20 ) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

1.3. The Contractor shall submit a dated invoice on the Contractor's letterhead to the
Department.

1.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

2. The final invoice shall be submitted to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract Form P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

3. Invoices may be:

3.1. Assigned an electronic signature and emailed to DPHScontractbillinafSdhhs nh anv nr

3.2. Printed and hardcopy mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services
29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

4. Payrnents may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

5. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items within the price limitation, and to .adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of:-^th
parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Counen?:*.

Harbor Homes, Inc. Exhibit B Contractor IniUal:
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Exhibit B-1 Budget

N«w Hampshirt Dapartmant of Haatth and Human Sarvtcaa
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BMdariPregam Maow: HARBOR HOMES. *40.

BudgBi Raquost tar Early irtMnrenflon Scrricea and Bahavloral CounaaHng for HIV

Bodsat Farlod: July 1.2017 ttirough Juna 30. ma

-rocdPreanmcoaii-' ■ CoHaactM »aara/lia»eh-.yF-a-:"ve»a<^,.K..i.'L

.iftaod'
biraet , aKBraet' VTOMI.

1. Tom SaiaryWaow

2. Emokwa BanoBIa
3. Cot«»uttanti

OLOSO-OO
20.413.00

4.000.00

21.000.00

S.2SO.OO

102.650.00 01.650.00 %

20.413.00 S

21.000.00
S.250.00

1C2.6S0.00

26.663.00

4. Eoutomara:

Ranai

4.000.00 4.000.00

5. Suppte:

Puccfta»a<Oaoracia5n

EAjcational

Pnarmacv

4J)S0.00 4.0SO.OO

2.700.00

9,000.00
2,700.00

6.7S0.00

900.00
6.750.00

2.700.00

4.OSO.O0

2.700.00

5.000.00

1. Travel

7. Qcctgancv

C

266.00

1.800.00

1.166.00

1.000.00
900.00

1.200.00

1.166.00

1.800.00

orrant Erpariaas

TMaphorta

SuOtcribliona
AmM and LaoM
Irtsunoca

9. Softwara

Board EKoenaas

10. M»HaanorCcrmiuricattons
1 girf P(fcnaiion and Trajtutiq

12. Sufecorwractt/Aj'aariaiiB
13. Othar(spacifieOataiiimaftdatOfY):

Maatina*

TOTAL

bidHact Aa A Pareant of Obact

1,440.00 1.440.00

500.00

500.00

2,433.00
500.00

5.220.00

2.500.00
5.220.00

5.000.00
2.900.00

5.000.00

1.000.00

146.686.00 173l5KL00

1.440.00

5,220.00
2.500.00

5.000.00

1,000.00

2.500,00

5,000.00

173J92.00 (

Harbor Hornet. Inc.
exhib« B-l Budget
PagaKtf 1

Contractor irriUaB

Data



Exhibft B«2 Budget

Nvw Hampshir* Departmant of Health and Human Saivlcas

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

BIddertPfogiwi Name; HARBOR HOMES. WC.

Budoe< Requeet far Earlyt totarveiHIen Servlcce end Behevl«*el CaMxeellng for HIV

Bwdgel Fartod: JULY 1.2011 threugli JUNE 90.2019

$e3vl".j_-TaM;woafi.Coet^ r.<^coHeaelBrBt>—aiB

Line Nan 'Read'
i-ir-.Wreet; V£>T0M. N»*ee»>

Iehaw,a'g-g->j.'-v •

2. Ewcloyee Beoefita

3. Consuims

a«.S50.oo

21.213.00
21,000.00 10S.030.00

26,463.00
64.630.00 I r
21.213.00
4.000.00EowlDntefn:

Rantal

Repair Mtd Mnnlenance
PufChaaefOapraciaflen

5. Supei^
EducKional

4.000.00

1.050.00

21.213.00

4.000.00

Z700.00

5.000.00
2,700.00
5.000.CO

2.700.00

OMce

6. Travel

6.750.00

OOOXM
6750.00

'1,664.00
900.00

1.00

6.750.00

900.00

1.664.00

L200.00

goojw

7. Oeeupencv
Current Ejroefoea

Talepnorw
Poataqe

Subacrteiiona

AuOt and Leoef

inaurartce

,9. Softwy

_Bgata Eiipenaea

10. Maf%aBf»QfCommunic«tleoa

1. Stall Ecfacation and Trartno
12. Suecontracta/Aofeemenu

13. Other (specrfic detaia rnandatoryl:
I4eettna>

1700.00 1.700.00

'600.00

500.00
2.040.00
500.00

2.509.00
500.00

2.755.00

2.500.00

3.000.00
2.500.00

5000.00

1.000.00 1.000.00

1.440.00

2.509.00

5720.00

2700.00

3,000.00

1.440.00

2709.00

5220.00

2.500.00

3,000.00

TOTAL

Indlraet As A Fcrceni of Direct
14549500 26.0964)0

19.3%

HareorHomei. inc.

EjMt«B-2eu49ai
Page i of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: in addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall Include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement If it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
;hereto, that no payments.will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor.for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement In

excess of costs;

7.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of.the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices whictrsufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year, it is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, ^
Programs, Activities and Functions, Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to alt reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, It is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
l)e disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly conr^cted to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concernirig a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports. Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the follovwna
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

ail costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters,.or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under-the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at ail times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor initial^
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more employees. It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http^/www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 fPub L
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall Inform Its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHMS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function{s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditior^ as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. . Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

00/27/14
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19.4, Provide to DHHS an annual schedule Identrfying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINiTIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings: "

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section'of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations goveming the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a .cornp[lajLon pf_all_regulations promujgated.pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A, for the purpose of implementing Stale of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPI-ANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Conlractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as
follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever. The State shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(8) identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph, 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the following
language;
10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,

30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under.the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to
support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications In its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:

The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to the
continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to General Provisions Contractor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by. inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is.a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certificafion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: .

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord, NH 03301-6505 "

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's '
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing djug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five "calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency '
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.1.6.

has designated a centra) point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affected grant;
Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2, 1.3, 1.4,1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

1.7.

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Date

Contractor Name;O.Q
Nam^:
Title: ^ ̂

CU/OHHSni0713

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free
Workptace Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in-Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (Indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an ernployee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

itractor Name:

V

Tile-

Exhibit E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera! Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTiONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inatillity of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result In denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services" (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the prospective
prirnary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances..

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction." "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction tie entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligiblllty and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that It Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initiats
And Other Responsbility Matters
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Exhibit F

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
i person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract); been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed fordebarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any'federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).
I

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debafment, Suspension, Ineliglbility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

IIUJ.
Date - '

Title: PatfM 4

Exhibit F-Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WTTH REQUIREMEMTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NOND1SCRIMIWATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FATTH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the ContrBctofa
representativo as identified in SediORs 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foltowirig
certtficalion:

Contractor vrill comply, and will require any subgrantees or suticontractors to comply, with any appUcable
federal nondlscrimlnatipn requirements, which may include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act cf 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37B9d) which proh&)ls
rec^ients of federal hjndlng under Ihis stahjte from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delhrery of sendees or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certaki recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Oetinquency Prevention Ac! of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the crvil rights obligations of the Safe Streets AcL Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohbiled from discriminating, either in employment practices or In the deBvery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requiremants;

- the Chril Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 200Qd, which prohibits recipients of (ederal financia]
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the RohabilttaUoaAd of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipient of Federal fnancla)
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, In any program or activity;

- the Americans wUh DIsabilitfes Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683.1685^). wlUch prohtolts
discrimination on the basis ot sex in federally assisted education programs;

* the Age Obcrimlnation Act o! 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sectkms 6106-07), which prohibits discrimlrution on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal flnancial assistance. It does not include
employment dlscriminBtion;

- 28 C.F.R. pL 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOR Gran! Programs); 28 C.F.R. pL 42
(U.S. Depattment of Justice Regulations - Nondlscrimfr>ation; Equal Employment ̂portunity, Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faSh-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whlstleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act(NDAA)for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhisUeblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle bb^g activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representalion of feet upon which reRance is placed wt>en the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grourvfs for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment

ExNbllG jjf/'
Contractor IntlMi If
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
dl^rimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Dat? '

actor Name:

A Kt.

Title: ^

6/27M4

R*v. 10/21/14

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor fecility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or.library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12ofthe General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Date * na iUkx.
Title:

CUJDHHS/110713

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PQRTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor Idehtified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "preach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45
Code of Federal Regulations.

'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45 Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

"Designated Recpr^ Set"shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggreqation" in 45 CFR
Section164.501.

"Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. HITECH Act" mearis the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.- - - -

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and. Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Ipdividuar shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who gualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k- "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected heaith
information in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. i

.  . Exhibit I Contractor tnltiabv^j^
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Hearth Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unusable.
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH

Act. ~

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

' a- ' Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
' Infdhnltion (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under

Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
rts directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law,, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
HI. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, discJose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi^ss

Extiibll I I Contractor Inftiata
Heatth Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
.limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate .shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its intemal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or'
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivi[jg,P,HI

Exhibit I Contractor Initial:
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. ,

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any,individual requests access to. ameridment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonvarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Business!

Exhibit I Contractor Initial^
Health Insurance Portability Act
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(sj in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

3- Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Inltiaisl
Health Insurance Portability Act
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance, is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the *
standard terms and conditions {P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The Stat

Signature of Authorized Representative

I--I5A
Name of Authorized Representative

hPl-lS
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

WcZrLpr^i
the ontractor

Si ature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014
Exhibit I

Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate /Agreement
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Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the,entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the rnonth. plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: ,
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name;

r>

in

Exhibit J - Certification Regardirtg the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliancecu/DHMS/110713 ^ Page 1 of 2 Dale^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements;.and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. ahd/or
cooperative agreements?

'X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:,

Name:.

Name:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cu^HHS/iioro

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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